& HARINGEY COUNCIL

Summons to Attend

Full Council

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent
broadcast via the Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting
the Mayor will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.
The images and sound recording may be used for training purposes
within the Council.

Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However by
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you
are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those
images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training
purposes.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Principal
Support Officer (Committee Clerk) at the meeting.

To: The Mayor and Councillors of Haringey Council.

Dear Sir/Madam,

A meeting of the Council of the London Borough of Haringey will be held at the Civic Centre,
High Road, Wood Green, N22 8LE on MONDAY, 19TH MARCH, 2007 at 19:30 HRS, to
transact the following business:

AGENDA

1. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. TO ASK THE MAYOR TO CONSIDER THE ADMISSION OF ANY LATE ITEMS OF
BUSINESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 100B OF THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority at
which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and nature
of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the interest



10.

11.

12.

becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member's judgement of the public interest.

TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF
THE COUNCIL HELD ON 19 FEBRUARY 2007. (PAGES 1 - 10)

TO RECEIVE SUCH COMMUNICATIONS AS THE MAYOR MAY LAY BEFORE THE
COUNCIL

TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE (PAGES 11 -12)

TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES AND
MONITORING OFFICER (TO FOLLOW)

TO CONSIDER REQUESTS TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS AND/OR PETITIONS
AND, IF APPROVED, TO RECEIVE THEM

TO CONSIDER HARINGEY'S SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 2007 -
2016/7 "A SUSTAINABLE WAY FORWARD" (PAGES 13 - 54)

TO ANSWER QUESTIONS, IF ANY, IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL RULES OF
PROCEDURE NOS. 9 & 10 (PAGES 55 - 64)
TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE FOLLOWING BODIES (PAGES 65 - 126)

a) The Executive — Report 15. 2006/7
b) General Purposes Committee — Report 4. 2006/7

In accordance with Council Rules of Procedure No. 12(1), the Chief Executive will

submit a report, if appropriate, listing any recommendations from the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee requiring policy change or executive action.

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING MOTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL
RULES OF PROCEDURE NO. 13

MOTION U (2006/07):

Councillor Egan has given notice that he will move in the following terms:



“This Council notes current proposals from the police to reduce the front desk
service at night-time hours at Wood Green Police Station.

This Council believes that a 24-hour staffed front desk at the police station in
Wood Green is and should remain a key part of the policing arrangements for
Haringey, and in particular Wood Green.

This Council calls on the Leader and Executive Member for Crime and
Community Safety to ask the police to reconsider their proposals to ensure that
the proven demand for front desk services is balanced with the need for officers
on the streets.”

MOTION V (2006/07):
Councillor Wilson has given notice that he will move in the following terms:
“This Council

Recognises and welcomes the extra resources that have been put into the NHS
by Labour since 1997, following years of under funding by the Conservative
Government; But,

expresses anger and dismay at;

« the continuing financial crisis in the NHS and the impact that is having on
frontline health services in Haringey, and on Haringey PCT'’s ability to
properly plan services;

« the London Strategic Health Authority repeated raiding of Haringey PCT’s
budget, with over £10 million top-sliced from the 2006/07 budget;

« the Health Authorities threat to again top-slice the PCT’s budget by up to
3.6% in 2007/08, taking up to £12.5 million away from health services in
Haringey to be ‘loaned’ to other parts of the Health Service in London;

« the absence of any commitment from the Secretary of State for Health in her
recent letter as to when this £12.5 million ‘loan’ will be returned to the PCT;

« the PCT’s latest budget forecasts for 2007/08, which shows a £11.4m
funding gap between what the Trust needs to spend to cover wage rises,
inflation and new Government targets, and what has been provided by the
Labour Government;

opposes the Labour Government’s incompetent management of the National
Health Service;

further opposes Haringey Labour Party’s feeble acquiescence in this
mismanagement, and their lack of opposition to the continued raiding of
Haringey PCT’s budget;



and calls on the Labour Leader of Haringey Council and the Labour MP for
Tottenham to join Haringey Liberal Democrats and Lynne Featherstone MP in
arguing with Ministers against these cuts and standing up for Haringey’s Health
Service”

MOTION W (2006/07):
Councillor Aitken has given notice that he will move in the following terms:
“Council recognises that:

1. Crime and the fear of crime remain major concerns of residents in Haringey,
in particular fuelled by the persistence of so-called low level crime and antisocial
behaviour, the shortage of police officers on the beat, and the difficulty in getting
an adequate response to incidents from an overstretched police force;

2. The general public's confidence in safely visiting by day and night all parts of
Haringey must be reinforced, in particular by tackling at source known centres of
disorder;

3. Whilst partnership arrangements have led to better co-ordination between
agencies on law-enforcement within the Council's area, these are hampered by
lack of resources and appropriate powers locally, and misdirected government
policies nationally;

and notes that:

1. More police officers on patrol are urgently needed, and could be provided by
switching the billions of pounds being wasted on introducing the Government's
ineffective national ID Card scheme to police budgets;

2. Local communities need visible policing therefore we welcome plans
announced by the Metropolitan Police to re-develop Wood Green Police Station,
however there is still a need to keep 24-hour front-counters open at all Police
Stations in the borough.

3. The national 5-point 'We Can Cut Crime' campaign includes these proposals
with others designed to reduce crime, reduce the fear of crime and improve the
quality of life within the community, and ensure any victims of crime are properly
compensated,

and therefore

Council resolves to:

1. Support the objectives of the national 'We Can Cut Crime' campaign;

2. Lobby the relevant Secretaries of State for the action proposed in that
campaign, and for the additional powers and resources needed locally by the

4



Council and the Police to deliver their objectives, and calls on local Members of
Parliament to support the campaign, and to write to Ministers accordingly”.

Dr Ita O’'Donovan
Chief Executive
River Park House
225 High Road
Wood Green
London N22 8HQ

Friday 9 March 2007



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 FEBRUARY 2007

Councillors Adamou, Adje, Aitken, Alexander, Amin, Basu, Beacham, Bevan,
Beynon, Bloch, Bull, Butcher, Canver, Cooke, Davies, Demirci,
Diakides, Dobbie, Dodds, Dogus, Edge, Egan, Engert, Gorrie, Giriffith,
Haley, Hare, B. Harris, Hoban, Jones, Rahman Khan, Knight, Kober,
Lister, Mallett, Meehan, Mughal, Newton, Oakes, Oatway, Patel,
Peacock, Portess, Rainger, Reid, Reith, Santry, Stanton, Thompson,
Vanier, Weber, Whyte, Williams, Wilson and Winskill

Apologies Councillor C. Harris
MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

CNCL92. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Councillor C. Harris.

CNCL93.| TO ASK THE MAYOR TO CONSIDER THE ADMISSION OF ANY
LATE ITEMS OF BUSINESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 100B
OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

See minutes 96, 101 & 102.

CNCL94.| DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Adje declared a personal interest in item 10 — Financial
planning, as he was an employee of the London Fire and Emergency
Planning Authority for which a portion of the precept was paid to.

Councillor Butcher declared a personal interest in item 10 — Financial
planning, as he was an appointed Member of the London Fire and
Emergency Planning Authority for which a portion of the precept was
paid to.

Councillor Engert declared a personal interest in item 10 — Financial
planning, as she was an appointed Member of London Travel Watch for
which a portion of the precept was paid to.

Councillor Meehan declared a personal interest in item 10 — Financial
planning, as he was in receipt of a freedom pass.

Councillor Reith declared a personal interest in item 10 — Financial
planning, as she was an appointed Member of London Travel Watch for
which a portion of the precept was paid to.

Councillor Williams declared a personal interest in Motion T — as he was
an employee of a trade association within the Pub Industry.




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 FEBRUARY 2007

CNCL95.

SECTION 106 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE ACT 1992

Members were reminded of the need to consider whether they needed to
make a declaration in accordance with Section 106 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992 in relation to unpaid community charge or
council tax liability which was two months or more outstanding.

No such declarations were made.

CNCL96.

TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD ON 5 FEBRUARY 2007.

The Mayor agreed to admit the minutes as urgent business. Because of
the short timescale between the last meeting and this, it was not
possible to circulate the minutes with the summons. The minutes should
be confirmed at the next available meeting of the Council.

Copies of the Minutes having been circulated, they were taken as read.
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 5 February
2007 be signed as a true record.

CNCL97.

TO RECEIVE SUCH COMMUNICATIONS AS THE MAYOR MAY LAY
BEFORE THE COUNCIL

The Mayor reported that she had attended the launch of the Lesbian,
Gay, Bisexual and Transgender history month at Wood Green Central
Library.

The Mayor was sad to announce the death of Petra Clark wife of former
Councillor Peter Clarke. Councillor Diakides paid tribute.

CNCL98.

TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

RESOLVED

1. That the Acting Director of Finance undertake the role of
Section 151 officer until permanent recruitment to the post of
Director of Corporate Resources has been completed.

2. That the Council’s Constitution be amended to reflect the
matters at paragraphs 6.3, 6.4 and 6.5 of this report, until such
time as the new Director of Corporate Resources takes up
post.

CNCL99.

TO RECEIVE THE REPORTS OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 FEBRUARY 2007

AND MONITORING OFFICER
There were no matters to report.

CNCL10C

TO CONSIDER REQUESTS TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS AND/OR
PETITIONS AND, IF APPROVED, TO RECEIVE THEM
There were no deputations or petitions.

CNCL101

TO CONSIDER THE REPORT OF THE ACTING DIRECTOR OF
FINANCE IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL PLANNING 2007/8 TO
2010/11AND TO AGREE THE COUNCIL TAX FOR 2007/8.

The Mayor agreed to admit the report as urgent business. The report
could not be circulated earlier as vital information was awaited from the
preceptors. The report needed to be admitted in order that the Council
Tax may be set for 2007/08.

On a Motion by Councillor Mallet there being 30 for and 25 against it
was:

RESOLVED:

1. That the final settlement be noted and the way forward as outlined
in the circulated report in respect of the levying authorities and
Local Authority Business Growth Incentive scheme be agreed.

2. That approval be given to the reduction in non-HRA rent levels as
set out in the circulated report.

3. That the uncertainty as a result of single status negotiations be
noted.

4. That the business unit cash limits, set out in Appendix C of the
report, be agreed.

5. That the Greater London Authority precept be noted.

6. That the budget resolution in the specified format as set out in the
attached appendix be agreed.

7. That the reserves policy attached at Appendix E of the report, be
agreed.

CNCL10Z

TO ANSWER QUESTIONS, IF ANY, IN ACCORDANCE WITH
COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE NOS. 9 & 10

The Mayor agreed to the admission of this report as urgent business.
Under Standing Orders, notice of questions was not requested until eight
clear days before the meeting, following which matters raised had to be
researched and replies prepared, in order to be given at the meeting.




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 FEBRUARY 2007

There were 10 oral questions and 27 for written answer.

Oral Questions 7 — 10 were not reached in the allotted time and written
answers were supplied to these questions.

CNCL103

TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE FOLLOWING BODIES
RESOLVED:

That Executive report number 14 be received and adopted.

CNCL104

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING MOTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE NO. 13
MOTION R (2006/07):

It was moved by Councillor Mughal and seconded by Councillor Hoban
that:

“This Council recognises the vital role played by private sector
businesses towards the present and future economic well being of
Haringey and its residents, and believes that more work needs to
be done to make Haringey an attractive place to do business,
and to foster an enterprise culture within the Council.

This Council therefore resolves to make 2007 the 'year of
business' for the Council, pursuing with greater vigour the
promotion of enterprise in the borough wherever possible,
including through the production and promotion, through council
publications, of business directories for the borough; the creation
of a business services desk in the Council, with the establishment
of identified business champions in appropriate council
departments, and the development and promotion of a brand for
Haringey as a great place to do business”.

An amendment to motion R was moved by Councillor Amin and
seconded by Councillor Cooke that:

Delete all after “Haringey and its residents,” in the first sentence,
and insert

“and welcomes the Council’s clear focus on promoting enterprise
and its string of successes in making Haringey a great place to do
business.

This Council notes that our borough has levels of new business
VAT registrations 16% above the London average and that rates
of self employment in Haringey are rising, and welcomes the
success of the Trade Local project which showed how increasing




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 FEBRUARY 2007

the supply chain opportunities for local business has benefited the
local economy, with over 1,000 businesses in the borough
engaged in the programme.

This Council welcomes the success of the 2006 Haringey City
Growth Business Awards in attracting 300 businesses to the
event, and looks forward to an equally successful ceremony on 8
March 2007, building on the considerable amount of work done to
consolidate and improve the Council’s relationship with local
business.

This Council welcomes the wealth of information to support
businesses now being made available on the Council website and
looks forward to the future development of this as a resource for
local businesses. A new business lounge was recently launched
at Wood Green Library, providing a range of services including
access to cashflow and business planning software and dedicated
one-to-one business advice and support.

This Council, mindful that physical regeneration must always be
accompanied by social regeneration through new employment
opportunities and new skills training, recognizes the crucial
importance of partnership working with the local private sector to
tackle worklessness in our borough through active intervention.

This Council therefore resolves to continue its policies throughout
the term of this council and tolaunch a charter with local
businesses, within the next four months, to encourage businesses
to sign up to the Haringey Guarantee, providing an opportunity for
employers to gain support in accessing a local committed and
skilled workforce as well as providing local residents with job
opportunities.”

The amendment was then put to the meeting and declared carried.
There being 30 for, 0 against, and 25 abstentions.

The substantive Motion as amended was then put to the meeting.

A named vote was requested in respect of the Substantive Motion.

For: The Mayor (Councillor Adamou), the Deputy Mayor (Councillor
Thompson), Councillors Adje, Amin, Basu, Bevan, Bull, Canver, Cook,
Diakides, Dobbie, Dodds, Dogus, Egan, Griffith, Haley, B Harris,
Jones, Khan, Knight, Kober, Lister, Mallett, Meehan, Patel, Peacock,
Reith, Santry, Stanton and Vanier.

Against: Nil

Abstentions: Councillors Aitken, Alexander, Beacham, Beynon, Bloch,
Butcher, Davies, Demirci, Edge, Engert, Gorrie, Hare, Hoban, Mughal,
Newton, Oakes, Oatway, Portess, Rainger, Reid, Weber, Whyte,
Williams, Wilson and Winskill.




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 FEBRUARY 2007

Absent : Councillors Baker, C. Harris
The Substantive Motion was declared CARRIED.

MOTION S (2006/07):

It was moved by Councillor Whyte and seconded by Councillor Aitken
that:

“This Council believes that the Freedom of Information Act 2000,
which came into force on 1% January 2005, is a significant and
most welcome piece of legislation in empowering citizens and
ensuring all forms of government and public bodies are effectively
scrutinised and held to account. This Council celebrates the
significant benefits of this legislation to the public which far
exceed its administrative costs.

This Council believes that it is vital that the Freedom of
Information legislation is better publicised throughout Haringey
and that every step should be taken to ensure that this Council
meets all relevant requests for information within the specified
time requirements set out by the legislation.

This Council also opposes current proposals to significantly
change, after a very short period of time, the administration of this
significant legislation, especially relating to the dangerous
proposal that unrelated requests by the same individual or
organisation to an authority should be aggregated and refused if
the aggregated cost exceed the specified financial limits.  This
Council believes this proposal could severely ration use of the Act
by the local media and campaigning organisations.

This Council urges Haringey’s two Members of Parliament to
defend the basic principles of the Freedom of Information Act
2000 and to ensure that the harmful proposals as set out in the
current consultation by the Department of Constitutional Affairs
are opposed.

An amendment to motion S was moved by Councillor Basu and
seconded by Councillor Reith that:

Delete all after “far exceed its administrative costs” (end of
paragraph 1) and replace with:

“This Council is proud of its record in responding openly and fairly
to legitimate Freedom of Information requests. We will continue to
put resources into ensuring that the Council complies with the
obligations set out by the legislation.

This Council notes the current Government consultation on the
way in which those regulations could be improved for the vast
majority of users of the new powers just two years after they were
first introduced.




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL
MONDAY, 19 FEBRUARY 2007

This Council believes that the more there is a culture of
openness, the better decision-making is, and that when decisions
have to be publicly explained, they are better taken.

This Council believes that the government’s legislation and the
consultation now taking place will encourage the development of
informed accountability at all levels of government and will have a
positive and widespread effect on the delivery of public services.

Therefore this Council will urge the Department of Constitutional
Affairs in its consultation on draft regulations to strengthen the
operation of Freedom of Information requests and urges
Haringey’s two MPs to defend the spirit, credibility and integrity of
the Freedom of Information legislation”.

The amendment was then put to the meeting and declared CARRIED.
There being 30 for and 25 against.

The substantive Motion was then put to the meeting and declared

CARRIED.
There being 30 for, 0 against, and 25 abstentions.

Motion T was not heard due the lack of time.

Councillor Gina Adamou

Mayor




Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9
Appendix
COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION

1. That it be noted that on 3 January 2007 the Acting Director of Finance in
consultation with the Executive Lead Member for Finance agreed the
amount of 84,468 as the council tax base for the year in accordance with
regulation 3 of the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax base)
Regulations 1992 made under Section 33(5) of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992.

2. That the following amounts now be calculated by the Council for the year
2007/08 in accordance with the Sections 32 to 36 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992.

(a) £827,869,000 being the aggregate of the amounts which the
Council estimates for the items set out in Section 32(2) of
the Act.

(b) £600,096,000 being the aggregate of the amounts which the
Council estimates for the items set out in Section 32(3) of
the Act.

(c) £227,773,000 being the amount by which the aggregate at 2(a)
above exceeds the aggregate at 2(b) above, calculated
by the Council, in accordance with the Section 32(4) of
the Act, as its budget requirement for the year.

(d) £132,507,639 being the aggregate of the sums which the Council
estimates will be payable for the year into its general fund
in respect of redistributed non-domestic rates, revenue
support grant, additional grant, or SSA reduction grant
increased by the amount of the sums which the Council
estimates will be transferred in the year from its collection
fund to its general fund in accordance with Section 97(3)
of the Local Government Act 1998 or reduced by the
amount of sums which the Council estimates will be
transferred in the year from its general fund to its
collection fund in accordance with Section 97(4) of the
Local Government Finance Act 1998 and increased by
the amount of any sum which the Council estimates will
be transferred from its collection fund to its general fund
pursuant to the Collection Fund (Community Charges)
directions under Section 98(4) of the Local Government
Finance Act 1998 made on 7 February 1994 or reduced
by the amount of any sum which the Council estimates
will be transferred from its general fund to its collection
fund pursuant to the Collection Fund (Community
Charges) directions under Section 98(5) of the Local
Government Finance Act 1998 made on 7 February 1994.

(e) £1,127.83 being the amount at 2 (c) above less the amount at 2(d)
above, all divided by the amount at 1 above, calculated
by the Council, in accordance with Section 33(l) of the
Act, as the basic amount of its council tax for the year.

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\ 1\7\8\Al0000687 1\MinutesFinancialPlanningAppd0.doc



Page 10

(f) Valuation Bands

£
751.89
877.20
1,002.51
1,127.83
1,378.35
1,629.10
1,879.71
2,255.66

IOGTMMmMOOm>

Being the amounts given by multiplying the amount at 2(e) above the
number which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(I) of the Act, is
applicable to dwellings listed in a particular valuation band divided by the
number in which that proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in
valuation band D, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section
36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for the year in
respect of categories of dwellings listed in different valuation bands.

3. That it be noted that for 2007/08 the amounts in precepts issued to the
Council, in respect of the Greater London Authority and its functional
bodies, in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance
Act 1992, for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:

Valuation Bands

£
202.59
236.35
270.12
303.88
371.41
438.94
506.47
607.76

IOMMOoOO >

4. That having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 2(f)
and 3 above, the Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the following amounts as the
amounts of Council Tax for the year 2007/08 for each of the categories of
dwellings shown below.

Valuation Bands

£

954.48
1,113.55
1,272.63
1,431.71
1,749.76
2,068.04
2,386.18
2,863.42

IOMMmMOOm>

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\ 1\7\8\Al0000687 1\MinutesFinancialPlanningAppd0.doc



Page 11 Agenda ltem 6

Agenda item: 6

Council Meeting — 19 March 2007

Report Title: Appointment of Monitoring Officer

Report of: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non - key

1. Purpose
1.1 To appoint a Monitoring Officer

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Deputy Head of Legal Services be appointed as the Council’s Monitoring
Officer with effect from 30 March 2007 until permanent recruitment to the post of
Head of Legal Services.

Report Authorised by: Chief Executive

Contact Officer: Ken Pryor, Deputy Head of Member Services.
Tel: 0208 489 2915

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Council must appoint a Monitoring Officer for performing the duties imposed by
section 5 of the 1989 Local Government and Housing Act.

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)
N/A

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

1. The following papers have been used in the preparation of this report and can be
inspected at River Park House, 225 High Road Wood Green, London, N22 8HQ by
contacting Ken Pryor on 020 8489 2915.

The Council’s Constitution




Page 12

6. Background

6.1 The current Monitoring Officer and Head of Legal Services, Davina Fiore, is due to
leave the Council’s employment on 29 March 2007 to take up a post with London
Fire and Emergency Planning Authority.

6.2 The 1989 Local Government and Housing Act states that a duty of the authority is
“to designate one of their officers (to be known as “monitoring officer”) as the officer
responsible for performing the duties imposed by section 5 of the Act.

6.3 Section 5A (10) goes on to state that “ The duties of an authority's monitoring
officer under this section shall be performed by him personally or, where he is
unable to act owing to absence or iliness, personally by such member of his staff as
he has for the time being nominated as his deputy for the purposes of this section.”

6.4 The Deputy Head of Legal Services is presently Deputy Monitoring Officer but, in
order to satisfy the Act, it is recommended that John Suddaby is designated
Monitoring Officer with effect from 30 March until such time as a new Head of Legal
Services takes up post. He will also undertake the role of Acting Head of Legal
Services until the new Head of Service takes up post

6.5 . The constitution at K1 and F.7 identifies the Monitoring Officer as one of three key
posts that the Authority must appoint.
7. Comments and the Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer

7.1 The Council must by law appoint a single officer with overall responsibility for
performing the duties imposed by section 5 of the 1989 Local Government and
Housing Act.



Page 13 Agenda ltem 9

B2 HARINGEY COUNCILE
Agenda item: NO_
Council 19" March 2007

Report Title: “A Sustainable Way Forward” — Haringey’s Sustainable Community Strategy
2007-2016/17

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): [add reference]

Report of the Chief Executive Dr. Ita O’Donovan

Wards(s) affected: ALL Report for: Key

1. Purpose (That is, the decision required)

1.1 To receive and adopt “A sustainable way forward” Haringey’s Sustainable
Community Strategy 2007/16

2. Recommendations

2.1 To adopt the Strategy, subject to the comments of the Haringey Strategic Partnership.
To delegate to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader, the agreed
consequential changes following the HSP meeting on 22™ March 2007

Report Authorised by: Justin Holliday, Assistant Chief Executive

Contact Officer: Janice Robinson, Principal Policy Officer,
Janice.robinson@haringey.gov.uk 020 8489 2613

3. Director of Finance Comments
3.1 The financial implications are set out under 10.1

4. Head of Legal Services Comments
4.1 The legal implications are set out in paragraphs 9.1 and 9.2 of the report.

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

5.1 Any further information or background documents referred to in this report or
associated with the Sustainable Community Strategy can be obtained from Janice
Robinson 020 8 489 2613 janice.robinson@hairngey.gov.uk

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 1



6.2

6.3

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec

Page 14

The Development of “A sustainable Way Forward”

The Sustainable Community Strategy (the Strategy) is the top level overarching
strategy for the whole borough. The purpose of the Strategy is to “promote and
improve the economic, social and environmental well-being of the area and to
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development in the U.K.” There is a
requirement on the local authority to produce such a strategy in partnership. Our
existing community strategy reached the end of it’s lifecycle at the end of March
2007 and this strategy will become effective from April 2007. The Strategy
attached as Appendix 1 is the outcome of the Haringey Strategic Partnership
(HSP or Partnership).

The document has been developed through the structures of the HSP. The main
board has overseen the entire process. However, the on-going development
was delegated to a Steering Group formed from the HSP. The HSP theme
groups were also engaged in the development process. The Council has been
fully informed on the development of the strategy with the involvement of the
Majority and Minority Groups, the Executive Advisory Board, chief officers and
other tiers of staff.

Following extensive consultation the Strategy has the following overarching
vision:
“A place for diverse communities that people are proud to belong to”
and sets out six outcomes for Haringey:
e people at the heart of change
an environmentally sustainable future
economic vitality and prosperity shared by all
safer for all
healthier people with a better quality of life
people and customer focused

The consultation formed a central pillar for the development of the strategy.
Alongside this the biggest opportunities and challenges facing the borough also
informed the development of the strategy and this is incorporated into the allied
Local Area Agreement (LAA). The LAA forms a major part of the delivery of the
strategy. The LAA has been developed through an evidence based planning
process. The priority indicators and targets have been agreed in partnership,
and they are and developed upon a clear understanding of the key issues for
Haringey. Because of external government deadlines the LAA had to be
developed, agreed and signed-off by the HSP prior to the completion of the
Strategy.

Consultation

An inclusive and comprehensive consultation programme was used to engage
residents, business and other partners in the development of the Strategy. The
consultation programme was given a distinct identity with the “Have your say —
shape the future” logo. The consultation used a range of means that were
appropriate to the varying audiences to ascertain views and comments. The
results of this consultation underpin the strategy. Set out below is a condensed
overview of the consultation process. A more detailed report setting out the



7.2

7.3

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec

Page 15

elements of the consultation process can be obtained from the contact officer
listed on the frontpiece of this report.

The consultation took place over two main phases

Phase 1 was largely, but not wholly based upon a postcard campaign and

was designed as qualitative consultation. The postcard phase of this

consultation commenced on 17" June 2006 and ended on 25" August 2006.

The consultation then moved onto more formal groups and meetings, but

still used the four questions from the postcard as a basis for engaging with

residents and stakeholders. This phase of the consultation ended on 31°%

October by which time

= there had been approximately 1,200 responses to the postcard
questionnaire,

= the “Have your say — shape the future” road show had made 7 visits to
shopping areas across the borough

» An article was placed into the July issue of Haringey people

= the road show had visited all the Area Assemblies

= gstaff working on the Strategy had met with 17community, voluntary and
hard to reach groups

= the road show went to four large community events across the borough

= the consultation campaign had made contact with every community group
known to the borough

= A competition to engage children and young people was set up

Phase 2 of the consultation invited comment on the first draft of the strategy.

This commenced on 20" November 2006 and ended on 5" January 2007.

This consultation included

» A newsletter giving an update and feedback on the results of the
consultation and how to comment on the draft was sent to all earlier
participants in the process and all community and voluntary groups

= A similar article was posted onto the Haringey website and placed in the
December issues of Haringey People

» The draft Strategy was publicly available on the Haringey website

» An invitation to comment sent out to those groups previously involved
with the strategy

» |t was an agenda item at Area Assembly Meetings

» |t was discussed at the HSP theme board meetings to allow feedback and
comments on the draft

= A workshop event for staff across the Partnership to comment on the
Strategy was held

= A briefing was provided to majority and minority groups on Haringey
Council.

Results of the first phase of the consultation

The most common themes arsing from the postcard questionnaire are set out
below

What are the good things about living in Haringey?

The cultural diversity - the people was also a popular response
Open space/trees /parks
Transport - proximity to central London was also a common theme



7.4

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec

Page 16

e The shopping experience

What three things do you think would make Haringey a better place?
e Less crime/anti social behaviour/greater safety

e It should be cleaner/tidier/less rubbish/dirt

e Better services/opportunities for young people

o Better public services

What should Haringey be like in 10 years time?

e A good place to live - there was also an aspiration that Haringey should be
as good as ‘other’ places

e It should be clean and tidy

e It should be safe

e Better open spaces and parks

What concerns do you have about living in Haringey?
e The prevalence of crime and anti-social behaviour
This was the overwhelming response followed a very big drop to:
e Lack of cleanliness/amount of rubbish
e Young people - either concern about them or about the lack of services
e Education and schools

These results have all been incorporated into the strategy

Results of the second phase — comments on the draft

The results of the second phase or comments on the draft were, unsurprisingly,

more focused and confined to the draft document. The comments and advice

received from partners and other stakeholders can be summed up: The final

strategy should:

e Focus more on children and young people

e Address health inequalities

e Tackle deprivation and poverty

e Ensure that the need for more and improved affordable housing should is a
central part the strategy

These issues are now clearly worked into the strategy.

Next Steps

Monitoring progress and delivering the strategy

The Strategy is ambitious and sets high expectations for Haringey. The action
plans to support the delivery of this strategy are currently being developed and
these will in place by April 2007. The Local Area Agreement forms a large
element of the delivery of the strategy and the targets for these have already
been developed by the HSP. The performance indicators that will be contained
within the scorecard covers those elements most critical to the delivery of the
strategy and the ‘health’ of the borough.

Both the ‘scorecard’ and the action plans will be reviewed to check progress and
outcomes against targets and objectives. There will be a quarterly review of the
‘scorecard’ for members of the Partnership to review progress. There will be a



8.2

10.
10.1

10.2

11.

11.1

11.2

12.

12.1

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec

Page 17

six monthly review of the wider action plan and a wider annual evaluation of the
Strategy and the underpinning action plans. The entire Strategy will be
fundamentally reviewed every four years. The next review will take place in
2010.

The consultation and evidence underpinning the Strategy will also inform our
spatial planning and be built into the development of Haringey’s Local
Development Framework.

Production
The Strategy and the supporting action planning documents will be produced in
a variety of formats and will also be available electronically.

Strategic Implications

The Community Strategy sets the high level vision for the Haringey Strategic
Partnership until 2016/17. It is a long term strategy addressing the biggest
opportunities and issues facing the whole borough. It seeks to build upon the
borough’s success and potential but also to tackle the issues associated with
deprivation that face some parts of our community and some of our areas. It will
shape the business and resource planning of the Partnership agencies and
organisations. It is a Strategy that will be reviewed and renewed and will
therefore retain its relevance.

Financial Implications

This is a high level strategy. The activities of the Council under this Strategy
clearly need to be contained within existing financial plans.

The budget for producing the community strategy will be met by resources that
have already been identified. The costs of projects and programmes associated
with the delivery of the strategy will be contained within existing resources. The
Local Area Agreement aligns funding streams that will deliver a large part of the
Sustainable Community Strategy.

Legal Implications

The council has a duty to prepare a Community Strategy under the Local
Government Act (section 4(1) of the LGA 2000). Government guidance states
this should be done in partnership with the local strategic partnership. This
strategy has been developed under the direction of the Haringey Strategic
Partnership and through its structures.

Whenever the Council proposes to use its very important powers, under
section 2 of the LGA 2000, to promote the economic, social or
environmental well-being of the Borough, Members must first have regard
to the Community Strategy.

Equalities Implications

The Sustainable Community Strategy sets out a long term vision for the whole
borough. It covers spatial, economic, social and environmental issues. An initial



13.
13.1

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec

Page 18

equalities impact assessment has been undertaken. The initial assessment
shows that if delivered, the strategy will have a favourable impact upon those
facing social disadvantage or those with high needs. However, the full
delivery/action plans are not yet drawn up. Once these are completed it will be
possible to undertake a more holistic impact assessment that brings in those
wider issues that are associated with the Strategy. The Local Area Agreement
will deliver a large part of the Sustainable Community Strategy. The Local Area
Agreement was subject to an earlier impact assessment. This assessment
demonstrated that the LAA would have a positive impact upon equalities groups
in the borough by addressing identified needs and would significantly reduce the
barriers faced by some equalities groups.

Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs

The Sustainable community Strategy “A Sustainable Way Forward” is attached
as Appendix 1.



Page 19

Haringey Community
Strategy

Draft
A sustainable way forward

A Vision for Haringey

\ haringey strategic partnership

SHANINCEYCORCIE conel >1SC GRS e [
2 N weer [

Wovking together with local communities amd other pavtners

Appendix 1




Page 20

2nd draft v 15 DRAFT — Sustainable Community Strategy Page of 35 2



Page 21

Contents

3 Foreword
4 Executive summary
6 Infroduction

7  The priorities

people at the heart of change

an environmentally sustainable future
economic vitality and prosperity shared by all
safer for all

healthier people with a better quality of life
people and customer focused

20 Implementing the strategy and the Haringey
Scorecard

23 Membership of Haringey Strategic Partnership

Page of 35

3



Page 22

Foreword

Welcome to Haringey’s Sustainable Community Strategy

This strategy draws on the aspirations of residents, businesses and the
community and voluntary sector and addresses the biggest challenges and
opportunities facing us. Before we embarked upon this strategy the Haringey
Strategic partnership undertook an extensive consultation campaign to know
what you thought was important for Haringey.

For the people of Haringey the borough’s diversity is one of the best things
about living in the borough. The vision for Haringey reflects this.

Haringey 2016 our vision:
“A place for diverse communities that people are proud to

belong to”

The aim of this Strategy is to improve the quality of life for everyone. This
Strategy sets out our ambitions for the borough and what we want Haringey to
be like in 2016. It is important that people feel proud about where they live and
to have a sense of belonging and responsibility for the area. People also need
to feel safe and secure and together we will make the borough a safer place.

Haringey is a good place to live, work and do business and we want to make it
even better. Our community is at the heart of everything we do. We have
excellent community relations in Haringey and we will work to extend this and
build an even more cohesive community those shares and enjoys all the
borough has to offer.

We have a growing population with the numbers of children increasing at the
fastest rate. We will need first rate schools, facilities and homes to meet the
needs of our population. We will need to increase opportunity and improve
people’s qualifications and skills. We will open up access to work and
employment. We will protect vulnerable people and those in the greatest
need ensuring they are treated with respect and dignity. We want to tackle
deprivation and low pay and will make child poverty a focus of our work over
the coming years.

The needs of children and young people are at the heart of this document. We
want them to have happy and fulfilling lives, to be able to achieve and reach
their potential. We will make their hopes and aspirations central to the work of
the Partnership. They are the future.

Councillor George Meehan
Chair of the Haringey Strategic Partnership

Page of 35 4



Leader of Haringey Council

Page 23

Page of 35

5



Page 24

Executive summary

People at the heart of change

Haringey is a cohesive community where people get on well together. More
people will be happy with where they live and take a pride in the clean and
attractive public realm, built environment, and excellent parks. The places we
love and our buildings of heritage will be protected. There will be outstanding
schools, more and better housing, improved shopping and transport and a
thriving arts and cultural sector.

An environmentally sustainable future

Together with others, Haringey will have reduced the borough’s environmental
footprint. There will be reductions in carbon emissions with clear targets for
continued reduction. Transport will be measurably more sustainable. We will be
recycling more and wasting less.

Economic vitality and prosperity shared by all

The community will benefit from increased economic activity in Haringey and in
the wider region. We will tackle low incomes and deprivation and we will see
increased levels of employment, greater prosperity, opportunity and enterprise.
Our children and young people will be achieving more than ever and we will
place emphasis on increasing their life chances and inclusion in education and
training. We will ensure that these benefits will reach all children especially
those who are most disadvantaged. The opportunities to learn and develop will
have greatly increased and will be accessible throughout life.

Safer for all

Haringey will be a safer borough where people feel safe and confident about
using all the wonderful spaces and places Haringey has to offer. Public
transport will be safer and our homes will be more secure. Vulnerable people
will be protected. People will show concern for others, taking a pride in their
surroundings. Children and young people will have positive opportunities and
will be able to enjoy and learn without crime and bullying affecting their lives.
Our roads will be safer.

Healthier people with a better quality of life

Health inequalities will be markedly reduced with people living longer and
healthier lives in all parts of the borough. Haringey's babies will be healthier.
More people will be living independently at home and will be able to access
opportunities and support to increase their wellbeing and enjoyment of life.
There will be more warm and decent homes. We will ensure that all our children
and young people get the best possible start in life and that parents are able to
play a full role in supporting and parenting their children.

Page of 35 6



Page 25

People and customer focused

People will be able access high quality, services and facilities and will be at the
heart of decision making and service planning. This will increase the levels of
satisfaction with the services they receive. Community leadership will be
transparent and accountable and there will be greater opportunities for civic
engagement and volunteering. People will be drawn together across the
communities and the generations and this will tackle isolation and exclusion.
Children and young people will be involved in those decisions that affect them
and their future.

Page of 35

7



Page 26

Infroduction
Haringey: the future, the people and the place

Haringey is an amazing place. We are a cosmopolitan borough of old and
new communities. We have a diverse growing population and a diverse
landscape, embracing the Edwardian sweep of Muswell Hill, the colourful
spectacle of Harringay Green Lanes, the panoramic hill top views from
Alexandra Place and the wide vistas of Tottenham Marshes and the River
Lee. We want to promote the distinctiveness and uniqueness of our
harmonious and varied communities to the world outside. We want to open
up our under utilised areas, publicise Haringey to others so that they can
identify opportunities for collaboration and reasons to invest in Haringey. We
want to attract investment to help transform the borough and improve the
places where we live, work and spend time.

Haringey is a welcoming borough and we want greater cohesion across
neighbourhoods, cultures and generations. Haringey is a place where
everyone can feel they belong and where everyone has a positive
confribution to make. While celebrating diversity, we want to maintain and
promote that which we hold in common, with people from all communities
sharing and enjoying well managed, high quality services and schools. The
borough'’s facilities and cultural opportunities will be easier to access through
improved transport, better communications and effective technology.
Haringey is incredibly well connected, and we will take full advantage of
this, but, we need improved transport between Haringey's different
neighbourhoods, and better services and connections with other parts of
London and strategic points such as Stansted and the Eurostar at Kings Cross.
We must use our proximity and connections to the 2012 Olympics in Stratford
to gain benefit for Haringey.

Haringey is people focused. We want people to have greater opportunity to
make a success of their lives and benefit from the prosperity of London and
the wider region. We need an increased supply of high quality affordable
housing, a reduction in health inequalities and we will tackle low incomes.
Services will continue to improve and will be easier to access and of the
highest quality. We will use resources wisely to secure long tferm
improvement and sustainability. People will be at the heart of change and
there will be effective and accountable civic leadership. Alongside this we
want to see a dynamic and engaged voluntary, community and faith sector
to help bring about improvement and secure success. We will empower
people, ensuring that young people and children are included, so they can
participate in what's important to them. Communities will see clear benefits
from development and change.

Page of 35 8



Page 27

How we developed this strategy

At the start of the process to develop this strategy we embarked upon
extensive local consultation. Your views are at the heart of this document.
These views, together with the considerations of the Haringey Strategic
Partnership and your elected council representatives, coupled with what we
know about the borough are set out in the rest of this document under six
agreed priorities. At the end of the document you can learn more about
how we will measure our progress and achievements.

Page of 35

9



Page 28

People at the heart of change

A cohesive and included community that gets on well together, sharing and
taking a pride in a clean and attractive environment. Our excellent parks
and open spaces will continue to improve. There will be outstanding
schools, good housing, improved shopping and transport and a thriving arts
and cultural sector. The changes and improvements we see will increase
resident satisfaction with where they live.

Why does this matter?

Community relations are a good barometer for the health of our borough
and you told us that Haringey's diversity is something that you value. We
also esteem that which we hold in common and we know that people get
on well fogether. Haringey is one of the most diverse areas in the counftry
and the changes we see create opportunity but we want to ensure that our
good community relations confinue. We want to create the conditions to
help people settle in Haringey and make a success of their lives. We also
need the resources to face some of the challenges that population change
and growth bring. The needs of our communities should be at the heart of
decision making with clear advantages resulting from investment and
change.

With your help, the Better Haringey campaign has resulted in a borough that
is cleaner and fidier and we know you want this to continue. A well
designed and maintained environment increases well-being and the sense
of pride that people have in their area. You told us you were ambitious for
the borough and its people. You wanted better facilities and activities for
children and young people. We know that people enjoy shopping and want
this to improve and although you value our good transport connections you
want them to get even better.

What you told us

“A truly cosmopolitan borough where people of diverse communities live
and work

in harmony”

“A place where people from all backgrounds can live, work and enjoy
themselves”

Page of35 10



Page 29

“A safe, clean, harmonious and aspirational place where there is an
excellent quality of life”.

“A place where people take more pride in their surroundings”

“A clean and pleasant place to live in and visit”

Page of 35 11



Page 30

What we want to see

We have excellent community relations, but we will not be complacent. We
will promote inclusion and foster an even greater understanding and
dialogue. We want all our communities to have easier access to our
wonderful open spaces, our facilities and our shopping areas. Better
transport connections and improved orbital fravel will increase mixing and
cohesion, boost economic outcomes by improving access to jobs and
commerce and reduce traffic congestion. We will encourage better building
design and standards across the borough to create housing, places and
spaces that people need and that they enjoy and want to use. We wiill
continue to increase the availability of affordable housing through the
optimum use of existing dwellings and by increasing the overall level of our
affordable housing stock. We will safeguard our buildings of heritage, build
mixed and sustainable communities and protect and enhance open space,
creating parks and open space that people respect and enjoy. We want an
open and inclusive borough that we share with others by improving and
creating places of enjoyment, culture and interest. From museums to
cinemas we want to see a plurality and diversity of first class leisure and
cultural opportunities that everyone can share and use.

How will we do it?

We will raise the cultural profile of central Tottenham, using the campus of
the Bernie Grant Centre and Tottenham Town Hall, Tottenham Green Leisure
Centre, Marcus Garvey Library and the College of North East London.
Hornsey Town Hall will become the cultural centrepiece of Crouch End. We
shall continue the development of Haringey Heartlands providing more
homes, a new school, jobs and cultural and leisure facilities. Housing
investment will create more affordable and decent housing and foster the
development of sustainable and mixed communities.

We will use the strategic location of Tottenham Hale to meet the demand for
high quality workspace and new homes. It will provide employment
opportunities and community facilities. There will be a secure and protected
future for Alexandra Palace, providing opportunities for leisure, work and
business. We will work with neighbouring boroughs and the Mayor of London
to improve transport and bring employment opportunities and new homes to
the Upper Lea Valley, which includes Tottenham Hale and North Tottenham.
The borough'’s social and physical programmes will build cohesion, increase
access and inclusion

We will build new schools and Children’s Centres that meet the needs of
children and young people, creating extended schools that are truly at the
heart of the community. We will confinue with initiatives that promote
cohesion and understanding, drawing together our older, newer and asylum

Page of 35 12



Page 31

and refugee communities. With the support of our residents businesses and
the community and voluntary sector we will build on the success of the
Better Haringey campaign for a cleaner safer borough that we are all proud
of.

Page of35 13



Page 32

An environmentally sustainable future

We want to tackle climate change and manage our environmental
resources more effectively, increase levels of recycling, improve and
promote sustainable transport and create sustainable and energy efficient
homes and buildings. We want to reduce the borough’s environmental
footprint. We will engage children and young people in environmental
issues, encouraging our future citizens to be our first ‘green generation’.

Why does this matter?

Climate change is an immediate and long term threat to our way of life and
will have a particularly high impact upon our children and future
generations. We do not have unlimited resources and we should use them
wisely and recycle more. Energy and water costs are likely to increase and
conserving them will become critical to achieving value for money as well as
environmental sustainability. Poor air quality and road congestion and
homes and buildings that are poorly built and costly to heat, diminish both
our quality of life and our wellbeing.

What you told us

“the greenest borough in London with the best recycling facilities and a
community that cares about their environment”

“clean, comfortable, happy”

“A caring multicultural community who are tackling global issues such as
environmental degradation and poverty”

What we want to see

Considerable improvements have been made with recycling in Haringey
and this needs to extend across the borough. We want to reduce waste and
enable far greater levels of recycling. We will protect biodiversity and open
space. We shall take steps to minimise the borough's environmental impact,
cut down on traffic congestion and reduce carbon emissions. To do this we
will need to have and use more sustainable transport options. We need
sustainable homes and buildings that are energy efficient and less costly to
maintain. Haringey will play its part in protecting the environment for future
generations and actively engage children and young people in these
efforts.

Page of35 14



Page 33

How will we do it?

Along with local, London wide, national and international initiatives we will
reduce carbon emissions. Haringey Council has signed up to the
Nottingham Declaration. This pledges the Council to work with residents,
businesses and organisations to build a basis on which we can make
Haringey a greener and more environmentally-conscious borough. To help
people better understand and adjust their environmental impact we will
enable people to ‘measure’ their carbon footprint and provide information
on how to reduce this sensibly and easily. The Council has also launched a
2020 vision to minimise waste. These leads will be taken up by the Strategic
Partnership bringing all the major agencies and institutions together to adopt
common policies and practices to reduce the use of finite resources.
Haringey cannot tackle these issues on its own but by making our
contribution together with regional and national government and joining in
with international efforts we can make a significant contribution to
managing resources and tackling climate change. Working with partners
like British Gas we will increase home energy efficiency, enable the
development of ‘green homes’, and work to ensure that all major new
developments have a whole-life reduced environmental impact. There will
be targeted initiatives to increase recycling across the whole borough. We
will develop a network of cycle lanes and secure bike parks, promoting the
use of public and greener transport, encouraging greater levels of walking
and cycling. We will protect biodiversity and enhance our landscapes with
more trees. We will work with our communities and encourage them to have
pride in their area and bring forward new ideas to protect the environment.
The work will continue with schools and we will particularly encourage
greater involvement of our children and young people.

Page of 35 15



Page 34

Economic vitality and prosperity shared by all

We will increase employment and the numbers of people in work, creating
greater prosperity, opportunity and enterprise. Children will achieve more at
school. We will place emphasis on increasing the life chances for young
people and will increase the numbers of young people engaged in
education and training. We will tackle low income and poverty and
champion lifelong learning for all.

Why does this matter?

London is a wealthy city that offers opportunity. However not all of our
community has shared in the capital’s prosperity. Worklessness and
deprivation have left some members of our community disempowered and
socially excluded. Deprivation has also had a negative effect upon the
physical environment of some of our communities. We know that
worklessness, isolation and low income have adverse effects upon our health
and wellbeing. Poverty, low achievement and lack of opportunity have a
partficularly high impact upon the life chances of young people. We want
our young people to have the encouragement and opportunity to gain the
skills and confidence that will enable them to make their way in the world.

What you told us

“more entrepreneurial to generate wealth and opportunity”

“an economically strong and prosperous borough”

“tackle poverty and social exclusion, ensuring everyone benefits from
change”

What we want to see

We want a socially inclusive borough that tackles poverty and
disadvantage. We want all people to have the opportunity to make a
success of their lives for themselves, their families and their communities. We
also want to ensure that we protect those on the lowest incomes and those
who are the most vulnerable. We want to extend opportunities for life long
learning, work, fraining and education for everyone, including older people
and those with disabilities.  All our children should be enabled to develop
their full potential whatever their background or family circumstances.

We want our already prosperous areas to continue to flourish and the
conditions for success to spread across the whole borough. We want more
people engaged in employment, training and education and the borough’s
strategic location championed and used to increase inward Investment and
link people to areas of employment.

The food and drink; clothing; information, communications and technology
and the creative and cultural industries will all form a key part of Haringey's

Page of 35 16



Page 35

‘unique selling point’ with Haringey's diverse and entrepreneurial population
creating robust markets for their goods and services.

Page of 35 17



Page 36

How will we do it?

We will extend the training opportunities for people to improve their skills and
increase the availability of places in further and higher education. As well as
helping to create sustainable local employment opportunities we will access
jobs in key areas of commerce and growth creating long term employment
opportunities for the whole borough and target employment initiatives at
those who find it hard to get work or training using initiatives such as a
guaranteed job interview scheme and work placements. The Haringey
Strategic Partnership and public services in Haringey all need to play their
part in increasing employment levels and opportunity for everyone.

Greater opportunity for young people

We will contfinue to improve results in schools and colleges and encourage
more targeted skills fraining to boost the life chances of our young people.
To achieve even better school exam results across the borough we will
ensure that all schools have the critical elements of success in place and
that the education children receive meets their needs. We will also ensure
that more young people achieve Key Stages 2 and 4 and get Level 2
qualifications when they are 18.

Business and inward investment

We will work with business through initiatives like the City Growth Strategy to
encourage enterprise and focus on encouraging and supporting those
businesses that have real growth potential in Haringey. Part of this will be to
focus on they key business clusters by such as food and drink and the
development of a strong creative and cultural industry which is a key part of
Haringey's ‘unique selling point’. We will foster Haringey's businesses through
initiatives such as Trade Local which encourage the greater use of local
businesses. We will act to enable clear openings and opportunities for
collaboration and investment.

Tackle poverty

We will target poverty, putting efforts info income maximisation, benefit take
up, debt reduction and social inclusion initiatives on those who need it. This
is particularly important for families with children and older people who live
on low- incomes and fixed incomes.

Page of 35 18



Page 37

Be safer for all

We will reduce the incidence and fear of crime, tackling its underlying
causes and provide support and protection to victims, neighbourhoods and
the most vulnerable members of our community. We will make homes safer
and create places that people and children enjoy using and take pride in.
Our roads will be safer. We will reduce the incidence of young people as
victims and perpetrators of crime, providing pathways for opportunity and
SUCCESS.

Why does this matter?

Crime has been steadily decreasing in Haringey but we know that it is still a
major concern for residents and business. Fear of crime diminishes the
quality of life, particularly for vulnerable groups. We also know that you want
people to take greater pride in their neighbourhoods and for people to have
greater respect and concern for one another. Evidence fells us that far foo
many young people are fearful of crime and become the victims and the
perpetrators of crime. We also know that children need safe places to play
and we need to make our roads safer and provide facilities they enjoy using.

What you told us

“a positive place to live with safe open places and people taking pride in
property

and public spaces”

“a peaceful place where children can be without fear of being bullied,
robbed or hit by a car”

“good community cohesion with people respecting each other and their
environment”

What we want to see

We want Haringey to be a safer borough where people feel safe, secure
and confident about using all the wonderful spaces and places that
Haringey has to offer and we want them to feel safe using public tfransport.
Our homes should be safe and secure places and we should ensure that
there are robust measures in place to protect the most vulnerable. We will
continue to improve the public realm and want more people to take a
greater pride in their environment. Children and young people should be
respected and included and they should show concern and respect for
others. They should have the opportunity to lead positive and happy lives
and we want to see parents play a greater role in their children’s
achievements and schooling. We want to lessen the devastating impact of
drug and alcohol abuse on individuals, families and communities.

Page of35 19



Page 38

How will we do it?

We will need to continue to tackle our crime hotspots and make places
cleaner, tidier and more attractive and welcoming. When things need fixing
we will do it quickly. Through the deployment of community support officers
on the boroughs fransport networks local fransport will be and feel safer.
Haringey has introduced neighbourhood policing initiatives and we will
continue to bring policing closer to local communities to increase the
understanding of where crime is taking place and what the solutions are.
People and communities who are victims of crime will be supported and
provided with the information they need to feel and be safer. There will be
an emphasis upon stopping re-offending and education around the effects
of drug and alcohol abuse with earlier and more targeted treatment
available to those who need it. We will make homes safer and more secure
installing more security and smoke alarms in the homes of those most
vulnerable. We will offer appropriate support and assistance to those
affected by domestic violence.

Children and young people

We will reduce the impact of crime and bullying on children the involvement
of children and young people in crime and anfi-social behaviour. We will do
this by giving greater parental support so that parents can be more involved
in setting frameworks for their children. There will also be a more systematic
approach to tackling the early signs of delinquent behaviour such as
bullying. We need to engage young people in positive activities that have
lasting benefits for them and their communities. We will increase education,
training and employment opportunities as an alternative to crime. We will
work together to help give children a clearer direction, built on values and
respect, from a younger age with schools, parents and families playing their
full part. We will infroduce more tfraffic calming and continue with road
safety education to make our streets safer for pedestrians, especially
children.

Page of 35 20



Page 39

Healthier people with a better quality of life

We will tackle health inequalities and create more decent homes, focusing
on those communities at the highest risk of poor health. People will live
longer and healthier lives in all parts of the borough. Babies will be healthier.
There will be greater opportunity for all people to lead healthier and lives
and more people will be living independently. We will ensure that all our
children and young people get the best possible start in life.

Why does this matter?

The health of Haringey's residents is improving but we know that these
improvements are not happening fast enough. The boroughs most
disadvantaged groups and those at most risk from poor mental and physical
health are not benefiting as they should from health improvements. Wider
factors such as smoking, poverty and unemployment, inadequate housing,
educational achievement and a poor diet have critical impacts upon our
health. We also know that primary healthcare services and facilities,
particularly in some parts of Tofttenham do not meet expectations and need
to be modernised. We need to tackle these issues and ensure that we target
the health inequalities that exist in Haringey so that good health can be
enjoyed by all. Keeping people healthy, active and independent gives
people a better quality of life makes sound financial sense and brings wider
benefits to the whole community.

Haringey's children and young people are achieving more than ever and
we have seen considerable improvement in educational attainment across
the borough. But more children should be achieving and succeeding. We
want to give all our children the best possible start in life and we need to
intervene to minimise the impact that social inequality has upon their life
chances. Children should be able to enjoy their childhood and teenage
years. We have a special responsibility for looked after children and it is
important that these children and young people benefit from the
opportunities and achievements enjoyed by other children.

What you told us

“you should help people to look after themselves and provide excellent
support for those who can’t”

“Carers need support and recognition”

“Listen fo the needs of young people”

“a borough that looks after its elderly and treats them with respect and
dignity”

What we want
We want healthier people with a better quality of life, with health and
wellbeing measurably improved across the borough. We want to minimise

Page of 35 21



Page 40

the impact of poor mental health, helping people to lead stable and
independent lives. All of Haringey's children and young people should have
the best possible start in life. We need more high quality, safe, settled and
affordable housing. We will promote independence and provide high
quality support and care for those in the greatest need. We need to
improve the facilities and access to primary and community healthcare to
ensure that everyone has access to first class services.

How will we do it?

We will target health interventions onto those groups aft risk of poor mental
and physical health, providing support and freatment earlier to help prevent
hospital admissions. We will confinue to work to reduce levels of
homelessness and have sustained levels of investment to both increase and
improve the housing stock for people who are in need. We will focus support
services on increasing opportunity, creating prosperity and tackling poverty,
through initiatives such as Welfare to Work, debt counselling and income
maximisation initiatives.

Support people to make healthy choices and lead healthy lives

People need access to support and information to help them make healthy
lifestyle choices. Everyone needs clear information on diet and the healthy
use of alcohol. However it is crucial that people are also given ready
support to give up smoking or when they have problems with drugs and
alcohol. Our parks and leisure facilities are an important part of promoting
enjoyable, active and healthy lifestyles. We need to ensure that all sections
of our community can access information and those services and facilities
that will help them to improve and maintain their health and quality of life.
Through improved community based services we will support vulnerable
members of the community to remain at home and maintain their
independence and we will give support and recognition to the role of
carers. We will ensure that people have more say over their care through
greater use of direct payments, support and advocacy. To tackle isolation
and improve life chances we shall provide increased opportunity for
socialising and learning.

A bright future for children and young people

More assistance will be provided to help parents encourage and support
their children at school. We will improve school buildings and build new
schools where they are needed and use the Building Schools for the Future
programme to provide schools fit for the 21st century. Children’s centres will
provide a focus for early intervention, prevention and education. There will
be greater emphasis upon keeping children healthy and fit through the
Healthy Schools initiative and using opportunities like the Olympics to
encourage sports and outdoor activity. We will recognise the value of
younger and older people in helping shape the services and facilities they
provide and will include them in major decisions across the borough. We will

Page of 35 22



Page 41

give voice to the concerns of all young people, especially vulnerable and
looked after children. All children should have the best possible start in life
we will continue to focus our efforts on reducing teenage pregnancy and
provide dedicated services for young and expectant young mothers to
reduce infant mortality.

More and improved housing

We will invest in the borough’s housing stock to increase the supply of
affordable housing, reduce overcrowding and improve our housing stock.

Page of 35

23



Page 42

Be people and customer focused

We want people in Haringey to receive high quality, customer focused and
accessible services that give value for money; respond to people’s needs
and meet their aspirations. This will result in increased satisfaction with the
services that people receive. Local leadership will be fransparent and
accountable. Everyone has a confribution to make. We will put in place
greater opportunities for civic engagement and volunteering, drawing in
local people to work together with our elected community leaders to
improve the borough. We will bring communities and the generations
together ensuring that we tackle social isolation and exclusion. We will
increase volunteering and civic engagement amongst children and young
people.

Why does this matter?

Good quality easily accessible services are an essential ingredient in
improving the quality of life. The provision of services and facilities should be
informed by local needs and influenced by the people who use them if they
are to meet need and expectation. We know that services designed with
users rather than for users are better. Limited public resources means good
management and value for money are crucial. Poorly designed services are
wasteful. Excellent public services need accountable and effective civic
leadership.

Involving customers improves services and strengthens the basis for active
citizenship and civic pride. Community parficipation helps people learn
valuable skills and experience and it brings communities and generations
together. Social isolation inhibits achievement and negates our quality of
life. We will use opportunities for engagement and volunteering to tackle
isolation and increase individual and community well-being. Large
agencies and institutions cannot provide everything we need for a better
quality of life. Volunteering and community involvement promotes
community cohesion bringing together people from across the cultures and
generations and provides a way for everyone to gain new and valuable
skills.

What you told us

“where people can make the right choices and are able to take
responsibility”

“Younger people respected and included”

“We want good services from the council, the GP and the bank”

Page of 35 24



Page 43

What we want

We need high quality, accessible well run facilities and services that treat
customers and users with fairness and decency. Services should be simple to
use and make life easier for our residents and businesses. People in Haringey
deserve excellent services and the provision of goods and services should be
of a high standard across the public, voluntary, independent and private
sectors

We want to increase community involvement and promote volunteering
and civic participation and people should have much greater control over
the type of services they receive and find it easier to raise local concerns
and issues. We need easier access to services and information by the
innovative use of technology, buildings and other facilities. We want to see
empowered active citizens, young to old, to have more say in service
provision and the policy decisions we make. Volunteering and community
work will become arite of passage for young people and a long term
commitment for many. Volunteering can be use to help older people remain
active, utilise their expertise and provide a basis for young and older people
to interact and gain a greater understanding of one another.

How will we do it?

We will use technology and innovation to deliver value for money high
quality services. We shall use intelligence and evidence to develop services
that meet the needs and expectations of our diverse community. Through
effective and joined up consultation across the agencies, we will ensure that
services are responsive to local issues. We also want to see more on-going
user involvement. We will provide better and timelier information to enable
people to make the right choices. Translation services are a vital part of
ensuring that people get the information they need. But in the longer term
we must plan to ensure that all people are encouraged and have the
opportunity to learn English.

Voting increases community empowerment and we want to increase voter
registration levels and ensure that the most marginalised take up and use
their right to vote. However, effective local democracy is not just about
voting every four years. We will use the Council’s Scrutiny Services to
improve services across the piece and make them more accountable.
Where it makes sense, decision making and service planning can be brought
down to the neighbourhood level. Elected Council Members will be
supported by officers across all the organisations and agencies to enable
them to effectively carry out their community leadership roles. We shall set
up volunteering schemes that are to easy to access and rewarding for both
the volunteers and the communities they serve. Haringey has a wealth of
talent across the borough. We want to use this capacity to improve the

Page of 35 25



Page 44

borough and encourage more people to take an active interest in their
areq.

Page of 35 26



Page 45

Implementing the strategy and the Haringey
‘scorecard’

The Role of the Haringey Strategic Partnership and other partners
The Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP or Partnership) is a partnership of the
main organisations in the borough. This strategy has been devised and is
managed by the HSP. The primary purpose of the Partnership is to address
those issues that are better tackled collectively rather than by one agency in
isolation. The Partnership is led by the elected Council Leader. The
membership includes

e elected councillors, members of Haringey Council’'s Executive;
the Police;
the Primary Care Trust;
the College of North East London;
major Housing Associations and Homes for Haringey; and

¢ the voluntary and community sector.
The full list of members can be found at the back of this document. The
main Partnership is supported by partnership boards that focus on specific
areas of activity. Achieving this Strategy requires the full support of the HSP
and the other partnership boards.

Community engagement and the Voluntary and Community
Sector voice

The voluntary, community and faith sectors play an increasingly important
role on the Partnership and have reserved places on the HSP and the
partnership boards. Although the representative role of the elected
accountable councillor is critical to the legitimacy of this Strategy, the
voluntary, community and faith sectors help in the connection with
communities, particularly those that are hard to reach. These sectors also
draw in an immense wealth of capacity that makes the borough a richer
and better place.

Measuring progress: The Haringey ‘scorecard’

The aim of this Strategy is to improve the quality of life for everyone in
Haringey. How we assess this will be through a range of measurable key
indicators. These indicators have been chosen because they represent the
critical elements that are needed to asses the ‘health’ of our borough and
the progress in delivering the priorities set out in this strategy. They tell us
about those significant aspects of life in the borough that can be reliably
measured. These range from the level of crime, through to satisfaction levels
with the Council, the Police and health services. The HSP will set targets
around these that will make a definite and positive impact upon the
borough. Progress against these targets will measured and analysed and

Page of 35 27



Page 46

used to inform and develop the activity that underpins the Strategy. The
indicators to be included in the scorecard are listed below.

Page of 35 28



Page 47

The ‘scorecard’

The following indicators will be in included in the scorecard:

People at the heart of change

e Localstreet and environmental cleanliness (BVPI 199 a)-d))!

e Additional homes built in the borough and the proportion of these
which are affordable

e Percentage of people who feel that their local area is a place
where people from different backgrounds get on well together

e Percentage of residents expressing satisfaction with the local area
as a place to live

An environmentally sustainable future
e Percentage of household waste that has been recycled
e Percentage of municipal waste recycled
e Carbon Emission Levels
e Staff Travel Plans in place

Economic vitality and prosperity shared by all
e Percentage of 16 year olds achieving 5 or more GCSE’s at grades
A*-C
e Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or
training (NEETS)
e The proportion of residents of working age who are in work

Safer for all
e Level of priority crimes, as defined by the British Crime Survey
e Reduction in the proportion of adults saying they are in fear of
being a victim of crime
e The number of adults and children killed and seriously injured on
roads

Healthier people with a better quality of life

e Life expectancy for men and women- Reduce the death rate (all
age, all-cause mortality) in Haringey more rapidly in order to narrow
the gap between the death rate for Haringey and that for the
England population

e Infant mortality rate

e Older people helped to live at home per 1000 population aged 65
or over

e Percentage of Local Authority homes classified as non decent

People and customer focused
e Proportion of residents satisfied with

1 BVPI 199 Cleanliness a) litter and detritus b) graffiti c) fly posting d) fly tipping
Page of 35 29



Page 48

o the Council
o the Police
o their general practitioner

Page of 35 30



Page 49

The wider action plan

The Strategy is ambitious and sets high expectations for Haringey. As well as
the key indicators outlined in the ‘scorecard’ a linked but more detailed
action plan has been developed. This action plan will incorporate Local
Area Agreement (LAA) and the LAA forms a major part of the delivery of the
strategy. The LAA has been developed through an evidence based
planning process. The priority indicators and targets have been agreed in
partnership, and they are and developed upon a clear understanding of the
key issues for Haringey.

Performance management and reviewing the strategy

Both the ‘scorecard’ and the action plans will be reviewed to check
progress and outcomes against targets and objectives. The aim of the
review processes will be to check that:

what are we trying to achieve, is it still the right thing for the borough;
how we are trying to achieve our objectives is appropriate;

what we are doing is working and relevant and, therefore

what needs to change?

Importantly, the criteria through which outcomes are assessed will be based
on both performance and what people think.

There will be a quarterly review of the ‘scorecard’ for members of the
Partnership to review progress. There will be a six monthly review of the wider
action plan and a wider annual evaluation of the Strategy and the
underpinning action plans. The entire Strategy will be fundamentally
reviewed every four years. The next review will take place in 2010

Page of 35 31



Page 50

Membership of the Haringey Strategic Partnership

To be checked against recent changes and decisions

Clir George Meehan
Leader

Dr Ita O'Donovan
ClIr Nilgun Canver

CliIr Isadoros Diakides

ClIr Lorna Reith
Involvement,

CliIr Brian Haley

ClIr Bob Harris
Richard Sumray
Tracey Baldwin
Linda Banton
Centre Plus
Yolande Burgess
Simon O'Brien

Prof Norman Revell
Paul Head

Andrew Billany

Michael Jones
Symon Sentain

Pastor Nims Obunge
Faiza Rizvi

Mohammed Elmi

Lauritz Hansen-Bay
Network

Stanley Hui

Markos Chrysostomou

Chair of Haringey Strategic Partnership,

of Haringey Council

Chief Executive, Haringey Council

Executive Member for Crime and Community
Safety, Haringey Council

Executive Member for Housing, Haringey
Council

Executive Member for Community

Deputy Leader of Haringey Council
Better Places Partnership
Haringey Well-Being Partnership Board
Chairman, Haringey Teaching Primary Care
Trust
Chief Executive, Haringey Teaching Primary
Care Trust

Haringey Partnership Manager, Job

Learning & Skills Council (London North)
Metropolitan Police

Pro Vice-Chancellor and Director of
Development, Middlesex University
Principal, College of North East London
(CoNEL)
Chief Executive (Hornsey Housing Trust),
Registered Social Landlords
Chair of Homes for Haringey Board (ALMO)
Programme Director, New Deal for
Communities (NDC)
Chief Executive, Haringey Peace Alliance
Chief Executive, Haringey Community
Empowerment Network (HarCEN)
Haringey Community Empowerment Network
(HarCEN)

Haringey Community Empowerment

(HarCEN)

Chief Executive, Haringey Association of
Voluntary and Community Organisations
(HAVCO)

Enterprise Board

Haringey Association of Voluntary and

Page of 35 32



Page 51

Community Organisations (HAVCO)
John Egbo Haringey Association of Voluntary and
Community Organisations (HAVCO)

Page of 35 33



Dixie-Ann Joseph

Adam Jogee
Council

Shayan Mofitzadeh
Council

Sharon Shoesmith

Enid Ledgister

David Lammy, MP
Lynne Featherstone MP,
Joanne McCartney, AM
George Martin

Observers

Shaun Rogan
Mahpara Thompson
Steve Douglas

Page 52

Chair, Haringey Association of Voluntary and
Community Organisations (HAVCO)
Youth Councillor Haringey Youth

Youth Councillor, Haringey Youth

Children and Young People’s Strategic

Partnership Board

Safer Communities Executive Board
Member of Parliament

Member of Parliament

Member of the Greater London Authority

Race Equality Joint Consultative Committee

(REJCC)

Government Office for London (GOL)
London Development Agency (LDA)
Housing Corporation (HC)

Page of 35 34



Page 53

2nd draft v 15 DRAFT — Sustainable Community Strategy Page of 35 35



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55 Agenda ltem 10

COUNCIL QUESTIONS - 19 MARCH 2007

Oral Question 1 — To the Executive Member for Crime and Community
Safety from Clir Hoban:

Could the Executive Member please confirm whether she is satisfied that the
Haringey Parks Police Service has sufficient resources to deliver the service
they are contracted to deliver?

Oral Question 2 -To the Leader of the Council from Councillor Khan:

Does the Leader agree with me that Haringey’s scoring of 3 in the CPA’s
value for money category demonstrates once again this Labour
Administration’s commitment to efficiency?

Oral Question 3 — To the Executive Member for Environment and
Conservation from Clir Newton:

What progress he has made to date in consulting local residents on his
revised parking charges proposals?

Oral Question 4 — To the Executive Member for Environment and
Conservation from Councillor Kober:

Can the executive member outline what steps are being taken to ensure the
safety of our children on journeys to and from schools?

Oral Question 5 - To ask the Executive Member for Environment and
Conservation from Clir Williams:

Why is the Council set to take a whole year to consult residents in Highgate
regarding the possible extension of the Highgate Station Controlled parking
zone?

Oral Question 6 - To the Executive Member for Environment and
Conservation from Councillor Patel:

Will the Executive Member for Environment and Conservation join me in
thanking the staff of the parks department for the hard work they have done
over the last year which has allowed us to nominate 8 of our parks for a green
flag award?

Oral Question 7 — To the Executive Member for the Finance from Clir
Butcher:

What proportion of Council's electricity is purchased from green energy
sources?



Page 56

Oral Question 8 - To the Executive Member for Crime and Community
Safety from Councillor Peacock:

Does the Executive member agree that the 18% fall in the incidence of violent
crime in the borough is an outstanding achievement by the Police in Haringey,
and is a vindication of our policies in this area?

Oral Question 9 — To the Executive Member for Environment and
Conservation from Clir Hare:

In a feature in a recent Haringey People, the Executive Member claimed that
recycling glass saved large amounts of energy. However, the mixed collection
process with the glass sorted out by MRF (materials recovery facility) with
both the previous and the current contractors’ results in a total waste of the
energy in the glass. Far from reducing climate change, a huge amount of CO2
(equivalent in weight to 1/3 of the weight of the glass) is released, and the
materials in the glass are lost from the glass cycle. Will he undertake to
correct his statement, and to encourage people who can to instead take their
glass to recycling centres or on-street banks?

Oral Question 10 — To the Executive Member for Children and Young
People from Councillor Egan:

Can the Executive member inform us of the outcome of the SOC meeting held
on 14th March?

Written Question 1 — To the Executive Member for Children and Young
People from Councillor John Bevan:

Can the Executive Member for Children and Young People update us on the
progress that has been made so far on the new 6th Form Centre?

Written Question 2 — To the Executive Member for Finance from
Councillor Butcher:

a) How many default court judgements have been made against the London
Borough of Haringey for failure to respond for whatever reason to legal claims
each year for the past 5 years?

b) What is the total sum of initial awards made against LBH arising from
default judgements each year for the 5 previous years, regardless of any
subsequent funds recovered on appeal?



Page 57

Written Question 3 — To the Executive Member for Environment and
Conservation from Councillor Hare:

What is Haringey's policy on the disposal of computer monitors?

a) How does the Council facilitate the disposal of the potential hazardous
material in computer monitors?

i) Does the Council offer any service to the public to dispose of
monitors and what advertising to the public does the Council
provide to ensure people are aware of such a service?

ii) What information in the public domain exists to provide the
public of the risks of dumping computer monitors

b) Are there any schemes to re-use or recycle computer monitors in
Haringey?
c) How are computer monitors disposed of when:
i) in waste stream especially of flats with paladins?
i) left beside householders' wheelie bins?
iii) left on street?

Written Question 4 — To the Executive Member for Finance from
Councillor Beacham:

With reference to the Special Overview & Scrutiny call-in meeting held on 18"
July 2006, could the executive member confirm whether the
recommendations arising from this meeting have been implemented and if so,
please provide a full account of actions taken?

Written Question 5 — To the Executive Member for Children and Young
People from Councillor Hoban:

Given Ofwat’s guidance that it is the duty of the owner of any building to
consider the statutory requirements for the provision of fire fighting
appliances, what provision did the Council make to ensure that appropriate
fire safety arrangements were in place at Crowlands school prior to the fire?
In relation to these statutory requirements, please provide details of fire safety
provision the Council had made at all the properties it owns.

Written Question 6 — To the Executive Member for Community
Involvement from Councillor Reid:

What is Haringey's strategy for the introduction of a smart card for residents to
access Council services such as leisure, benefits, libraries, parking? And
could you confirm the following:

a) If such a strategy exists please provide a timetable for implementation
and consultation

b) What services will be included in the smart card service

c) What will be the cost of the smartcard to i) the Council ii) the resident
for using the service



Page 58

d) Which external bodies will be involved with the introduction of the
smartcard?

Written Question 7 — To the Executive Member for Environment and
Conservation from Councillor Oakes:

Please provide a breakdown of the works and related activities to improve the
crossing of Bounds Green Road at Avenue Gardens showing:

a) the number of recorded accidents prior to works for the past five years.

b) the date of the original plans, costs of Council officer time involved, dates
and cost of works.

c) the number of collisions with railings to date, the dates of incidents, and the
costs of repairs.

d) the date of revised plans, costs of officer time involved, dates and costs of
works

e) the source of funding and the total cost.

Written Question 8 — To the Executive Member for Children and Young
People from Councillor Baker:

Please provide a list of the individuals and their affiliations/organisations, who
have carried out child protection investigations in Haringey over the last 5
years, what were the subjects investigated, the dates of investigation, and
how much was paid for each investigation?

Do any of these individuals or organisations currently have any connections
with Haringey, or have they had in the past?

Written Question 9 — To the Executive Member for Environment and
Conservation from Councillor Newton:

With regard to the proposed resident permit charges in current and proposed
CPZ areas, an Executive member at a recent Area Assembly gave a figure
that the Council estimates that something over 40% of cars will fit within the
£30 charging bracket. Can he provide detailed evidence of how that figure
was determined.

Written Question 10 — To the Executive Member for Environment and
Conservation from Councillor Winskill:

Would the Executive Member outline the conditions of the road repair contract
with respect to how long the contractor has to effect repairs once they have
been reported to them by Haringey.

How many jobs are outstanding as of 5th March? — Please provide details of
where the job is being carried out and the estimated time of completion.

Please provide detailed figures showing the number of jobs currently running



Page 59

over the contractual completion time and the date in which these should have
been completed?

How many jobs have not met the estimated time for completion in the period
1%t January 2006 to date?

How many gangs does the contractor have that are currently operational in
the Borough on road repairs and does he feel that this is adequate to
undertake repairs in a technically adequate and timely way?

What powers does the Lead Member have to replace the current contractor if
he feels that they are under performing?

Written Question 11 — To the Executive Member for Organisational
Development and Performance from Councillor Demirci:

Please could the executive member state the Council policy regarding
essential car user status for officers and provide the following:

When was the policy last reviewed?

When is the next date for renewal?

What is the current scale of allowances?

Currently how many officers are designated as essential car users?
What did the scheme cost the council in 2004/05, 05/06 and what is the
current year likely to total?

In total, how many miles in the last financial year were travelled by
essential car users?

g) Please provide, using the banding structure proposed by the Council
for the new parking charge scheme, a breakdown of the numbers of
cars used for the essential car user scheme for each banding.

220T®

—
N—

Written Question 12 — To the Executive Member Children and Young
People from Councillor Engert:

To ask the Executive Member, that given letters went out to parents on 1
March 2007 giving the secondary school place offer for children transferring
from primary to secondary school in September 2007, please can she:

a) List for each secondary school in the Borough the number of children
applying for each preference category from one to six, as of 1st March.

b) List the number and percentage of Haringey children receiving an offer in
each of the six preference categories, as of 1st March.

c) List the number and percentage of Haringey children not receiving an offer
of any of their preferences and which ward they come from, as of 1st March.



Page 60

Written Question 13 — To the Executive Member for Children and Young
People from Councillor Weber:

To ask the Executive Member for Children and Young People, that given
letters went out to parents on 16 March 2007 giving the reception place offer
for children starting school in September 2007, please can she:

a) List for each primary/infant school in the Borough the number of children
applying for each preference category from one to four, as of 16 March.

b) List the number and percentage of Haringey children receiving an offer in
each of the four preference categories, as of 16 March.

c) List the number and percentage of Haringey children not receiving an offer
of any of their preferences and which ward they come from, as of 16 March.

Written Question 14 — To the Executive Member for Crime and
Community Safety from Councillor Alexander:

With the introduction of the new smoking ban in public places in July 2007,
what preparations is the council taking to enforce this ban within the boroughs
pubs, restaurants and other areas covered by this new legislation?

How much does the Council believe that it will cost to enforce the ban?

What revenue does the Council expect to receive?

Will the Council employ council staff to enforce the ban?

What financial resources have the Council received or expect to receive from
central government to ‘police’ the smoking ban?

Written Question 15 — To the Executive Member for Housing from
Councillor Gorrie:

Could the Council confirm the forecast total amount over the life of the Decent
Home Programme that will be paid to the four external consultant firms
appointed as "Compliance Team Partners" to monitor and manage the
Constructor Partners? The recommendation to appoint given to the
Procurement Committee on 13th Feb included the statement in section 13.2
"The award....is based on... confirmation that the consultants will be able to
deliver the Decent Homes Programme within the current forecasted budget".
Exactly how was the confirmation provided and on the basis of what evidence
was the confirmation accepted?

Written Question 16 — To the Executive Member for Children and Young
People from Councillor Beynon:

Does the Council employ an Access Officer or officers to ensure that all
schools built in the Building Schools for the Future project are providing



Page 61

equality of opportunity for disabled children as shown under the Disability
Discrimination Act 20057

Written Question 17 — To the Executive Member for Crime and
Community Safety from Councillor Mughal:

What provisions will be provided for warden cover in the park in Noel Park, to
stop the park being used at all hours by drug users and street drinkers,
preventing local parents from being able to take their children to play safely
there, and why has the security of Noel Park Nursery still, after months of our
bringing this to the attention of the Council, NOT been prioritised and dealt
with so local parents in Noel Park can feel safe sending their babies and
young children there?

Written Question 18 — To the Executive Member for Housing from
Councillor C. Harris:

a) How many homeless 16 - 17 year old residents are placed alone in
temporary accommodation hostels?

b) Do all Housing staff who have access to these homeless young 16 - 17
year olds have Full Enhanced Police Checks?

c) What measures are being taken to ensure that vulnerable homeless 16-17
year olds that are placed in temporary accommodation hostels are not open to
the harmful effects of drugs and violence and are helped to gain a home, job
and stability?

d) How has the Lead Member for Housing ensured that the Housing
Department has made provision to risk assess the un-staffed hostels where
Homeless 16 - 17 year olds are placed, as regards;

e) How many adult residents live in temporary accommodation where 16 — 17
year olds are also reside?

f) To date how many 16 -17 year old homeless young people are under the
Housing Department’s care and in un-staffed temporary accommodation?

g) How many hostels housing 16 — 17 year old homeless young people are
operating in the Borough?

Written Question 19 — To the Executive Member for Children and Young
People from Councillor Edge:

Please provide the schools in Haringey that collect biometric data from pupils,
what this information is used for (i.e. libraries) and whether this information is
passed onto any external body (private or public)?



Page 62

Written Question 20 — To the Executive Member for Organisational
Development and Performance from Councillor Williams:

Will regard to the implementation of the Equal Pay Agreement how many
female employees of the Council are entitled to backdated pay and is Council
Tax likely to increase as a result?

Written Question 21 — To the Executive Member for Finance from
Councillor Davies:

Please could the Executive Member provide the latest quarterly and yearly
Best Value Performance Indicators for the Housing Benefit section as set out
below:

a) BVPI 78a — Number of days taken to assess a new claim

b) BVPI 78b — Number of days taken to assess a change of
circumstances

c) BVPI 76b — Percentage correct claims

d) BVPI 76a — Number of visits per 1000 caseload

e) BVPI 76b — Number of investigators per 1000 caseload

f) BVPI 76c — Number of sanctions per 1000 caseload

g) BVPI 79b(i) — Percentage of overpayments recovered

h) BVPI 79b (iii) — Percentage of recoverable overpayments written off

Written Question 22 — To the Executive Member for Environment and
Conservation from Councillor Oatway:

How does the Council try to reduce the environmental impacts of printing? For
example

a) Are the printer's used ISO 14001 accredited?

b) Is the paper used at least 50% recycled throughout the Council? What
percentage of paper used is non-recycled?

c) Are all inks used vegetable based?

d) Are any gloss or matt finishes used biodegradable?

e) Is the paper usage, including production waste, measured and a
payment made to offset the Carbon Dioxide release when the paper
was made?

Written Question 23 — To the Executive Member for Crime and
Community Safety from Councillor Aitken:

Please provide a breakdown of how many Police Officers in Haringey have
been on long-term sick leave in each of the last two years (with the numbers
categorised by time on sick leave and also the number of Police Officers in
Haringey who have been on light duties in the last two years and for how long
they were on light duties.



Page 63

Written Question 24 — To the Executive Member for Crime and
Community Safety from Councillor Portess:

How many occasions have Armed Response Vehicles (ARVs) been called out
in Haringey in the last 3 years and on how many occasions have they had
cause to draw their weapons?

Written Question 25 — To the Executive Member for Organisational
Development and Performance from Councillor Rainger:

Will the Council will meet its deadline for implementation of the Equal Pay
Agreement and what will be the cost of implementation over the next three
years.

Written Question 26 — To the Executive Member for Environment and
Conservation from Councillor Whyte:

Please provide figures for the number of road traffic accidents involving
cyclists in the Borough in the last two years and what were the locations of
these accidents how many cyclists were a) killed b) injured.

Written Question 27 — To the Executive Member for Finance from
Councillor Bloch:

Please provide figures as to the number of Council Tax Demands and
Housing and Council Tax and Benefit Notifications sent to people who are
deceased for the period January 2006 to date?

Written Question 28 — To the Executive Member for Health and Social
Services from Councillor Wilson:

What progress is the Council making in providing safer cycle routes in the
Borough?



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65 Agenda ltem 11

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 15/2006-07 Page 1
COUNCIL 19 MARCH 2007

Chair: Deputy Chair:
Councillor George Meehan Councillor Lorna Reith
INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report covers matters considered by the Executive at our meeting on 20 February
2007. For ease of reference the Report is divided into the Executive portfolios

1.2 We trust that this Report will be helpful to Members in their representative role and
facilitate a fruitful dialogue between the Executive and all groups of Councillors. These
reports are a welcome opportunity for the Executive on a regular basis to present the
priorities and achievements of the Executive to Council colleagues for consideration and
comment. The Executive values and encourages the input of fellow members.

ITEMS OF REPORT

Organisational Development and Performance

2. THE COUNCIL’S PERFORMANCE - DECEMBER 2006

2.1 We considered a report which set out the routine financial and performance monitoring
for December 2006 in the balanced scorecard format. In summary the balanced
scorecard showed that for the excellent service perspective 75% of indicators were on
target or close to the end of year target at the end of December. For 25 of the 36 (69%)
customer focus measures, including the latest resident’s survey results, performance
targets were being met or close to being met. For financial health 24 of the 33 measures
traffic lighted achieved amber or green status meaning for 73% of indicators performance
levels were achieving target or being maintained at an acceptable level. Our
organisational development /capacity indicators including staff survey results showed
that for 14 of the 17 (82%) measures, performance was at or close to expected levels.
Overall 74% of indicators were achieving or close to achieving target. In addition 74% of
indicators had maintained or improved performance since the end of last year. The
scorecard appendix we considered also included some estimated top quartile data (All
England) so that progress could be assessed not only against the targets we set but in
terms of how we compared with others and how close we were to attaining what we
ultimately were aiming to achieve.

2.2  With regard to finance and in summary, based on the December position, the revenue
budget showed a £0.1m underspend. We were advised that Financial Regulations
required proposed budget changes be subject to our approval. We approved those
shown in the table below which fell into one of two categories:

o Budget virements, where it was proposed that budget provision be transferred
between one service budget and another. Explanations were provided where this
was the case;

o Increases or decreases in budget, generally where notification had been
received in-year of a change in the level of external funding such as grants or
supplementary credit approval.

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 66

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 15/2006-07

COUNCIL 19 MARCH 2007

Page 2

2.3 Under the Constitution, certain virements were key decisions. Key decisions were:
o for revenue, any virement which results in change in a directorate cash limit of
more than £250,000; and
o for capital, any virement which results in the change of a programme area of more
than £250,000.
Key decisions are highlighted by an asterisk in the table.
Period Service Key Amount Full year Description
current year Amount
(£°000) (£°000)
Environment | Cap 125 Additional TFL grant mainly for Principal
Road renewal at High Road N22 (£100k).
Environment | Cap 60 Emergency works at Ashley Road Depot
funded from capital receipts
All Rev* 343 Approved additional NRF projects to
mitigate the risk of potential underspend
in the 2006/07 NRF programme.
Chief Rev 20 Transfer of Members Services
Executives underspend to IT.
Chief Cap 21 Allocation of balance of Muswell Hill
Executives receipt (HERS) (£16k) and other external
contribution (£5k) to Green Lanes project

3. PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT — DECEMBER 2006

3.1 The Council will be aware that the programme is the vehicle for the delivery of

corporately significant projects and projects that are key political priorities. It underpinned
the Council’s corporate planning process, ensuring that the projects undertaken reflected
and helped to deliver Community Strategy and corporate priorities.

3.2 The report provided an opportunity to monitor, challenge and support the Council’s key

projects to ensure that they finished on time, to budget and deliver the outcomes for the
community. We considered a report which provided details of all the Council’s corporately
significant projects, covering the period up to the end of December 2006.
3.3  We were informed that a key driver in developing the programme structure had been to
improve financial oversight of the Council’s key corporate projects. Accordingly, projects
were required to report detailed financial information in their project highlight reports
each month. In receiving the report we noted that the key areas of financial concern as at
the end of December had been —

e Primary Schools — the concerns surrounding the current programme and finances
had been considered in detail and the updated position presented within the overall
capital programme for the Council. The programme was part of the financial planning
report approved by us on 23 January and reported to the Council on 5 February
2007.

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923




Page 67

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 15/2006-07 Page 3
COUNCIL 19 MARCH 2007

4.1

4.2

4.3

e Children’s Centres — the 2005-06 phase 1 overspend would be contained within the
overall 2006-07 Children and Young People’s Service Capital Programme. Phase 2
was being further considered in the light of experience from Phase 1 and an updated
revised detailed programme for Phase 2 would be produced before the start of the
2007-08 financial year.

e Procurement — this project had a target of £2m of savings, equally split over 2005/06
and 2006/07. Only £0.2m was achieved in 2005/06 with the remaining £0.8m rolled
into 2006/07 to create a revised 2006/07 figure of £1.8m. Of this, £0.8m was forecast
to be achieved by the end of the current year. Approval to re-phase the remaining
£1m across 2007/08 & 2008/09 had been given in the 2007/08 budget process with a
review of further potential projects underway jointly with directorates via the
Procurement Stream Board. The revised target was now significantly more likely to
be achieved.

N.B. These highlight reports reflected the position of some of the Council’s corporately
significant projects as at 31 December 2006 and might have changed in the
meantime.

Children and Young People

BIG LOTTERY FUND CHILDREN’S PLAY PROGRAMME - PORTFOLIO OF
PROJECTS FOR THE HARINGEY BID

We considered a report which advised us that the Children Act 2004 recognised that the
enjoyment of recreation, including play, was one of the key Every Child Matters
outcomes for children. In November 2005 following on from the Act, the Big Lottery Fund
(BLF) announced details of a new Children’s Play programme which was subsequently
launched in March 2006. The BLF’s Children’s Play programme required that the Council
develop a portfolio of projects that focused on areas of greatest need and contributed to
the Council’s ability to deliver the five portfolio outcomes and the overall outcomes
detailed within the Haringey Play Strategy. All local authorities were required to produce
a play strategy and an audit of play provision. Haringey’s Play Strategy (which had been
developed with a range of stakeholders) accompanied the report.

The BLF would assess play strategies using the Play England — Planning for Play
Guidance on the development and implementation of a local play strategy and portfolios
would be assessed using the BLF Guidance. Play England advised that both the play
strategy and the portfolio would be given equal weighting and that local authorities would
be required to submit detailed information for each project to be included in the portfolio
and a rationale for how it related to the Play Strategy.

We noted that the BLF Children’s Play Programme had four funding rounds in July 2006,
November 2006, March 2007 or September 2007. We also noted that Play England who
had been commissioned by the BLF to support the Children’s Play Programme had
provided informal feedback from BLF that none of the 19 portfolios submitted in July
2006 had been accepted. In the second round (November 2006) 40 portfolios had been
submitted and as at the time of our meeting only five have been approved. Our officers
had taken account of the feedback on these and subsequent bids in an effort to ensure
that our bid was successful. The BLF has made it known that Authorities who submitted

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 68

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 15/2006-07 Page 4
COUNCIL 19 MARCH 2007

in September 2007 would not be allowed the additional “pausing” time given to those
who submitted to the three previous deadline dates. “Pausing” time was the additional
time given to Authorities to provide clarification, if needed, on their Bid portfolio.

4.4 We were advised that seventeen applications had been received to the Haringey BLF
portfolio in the initial round with a total value of twice the amount of grant. Post tender
negotiations aimed to refine the bids to ensure viable and sustainable outcomes and the
success of the Strategy and the BLF Play Portfolio had been undertaken. These bids
had been further evaluated against the criteria and the evaluation panel had focussed
on a range of projects that covered the full of breadth of the Haringey portfolio
outcomes. While it was possible for organisations to bid for a project that was
predominantly revenue based, a cap of £100,000 had been placed on organisations
wishing to do so. It was recognised that projects aimed at providing greater play
opportunities for children with disabilities would require revenue funding but the Council
would not pay revenue costs once BLF funds had ceased and it was made clear as part
of the process that bidders had to set out how they intended to fund their project once
BLF funds came to an end. This would also be set out in the contracts for the
successful bidders.

4.5 Guidance received required that the Council developed a portfolio of projects that
focused on:

. Areas of greatest need;
. Contribution to the Council’s ability to deliver the five portfolio outcomes; and
) The overall outcomes detailed within the Haringey Play Strategy.

We were also advised that it was a requirement of the BLF that the Play Strategy
demonstrated that it had the support of key departments within the Local Authority as
well as the support from the Voluntary and Community Sector.

46 We report that we agreed the list of short-listed providers shown below compiled in
accordance with the Council’'s Contract Standings Orders open tendering process.
Together these met the full range of outcomes within the Haringey Play Strategy as
expected by BLF -

e Haringey Play Association — Somerford Grove Adventure Playground

e Markfield - A service to disabled children and their siblings (The project's services
are open to disabled and non disabled children).

Parks Service — Markfield Park

Parks Service — Lordship Recreation Ground

Parks Service — Chestnuts Park

Parks Service — Priory Park

Ludotek, Toy Library

Haringey Youth Service

(£)

Total Programme Cost 702,884
Total Programme Management Costs 78,098
Total BLF Programme Cost 780,982

5. POST COMPULSORY DISCRETIONARY AWARDS

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 69

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 15/2006-07 Page 5
COUNCIL 19 MARCH 2007

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.

6.1

The Council will be aware that since 1999 and in accordance with the Mandatory Award
Regulations for ordinary residence in the UK and the grant and fee rates, it has been our
general policy not to offer any new discretionary awards in respect of both the cost of
fees and maintenance grants. No new Post Compulsory Discretionary Awards have
been offered since 1998/99 financial year. On this basis no budgetary provision has been
made for Post Compulsory Discretionary Awards.

However, potential students were eligible to apply if there were exceptional
circumstances and we considered a report which advised us that the amounts that had
been awarded in the past ranged from approximately £1,200 - £1,300 per student per
year. In any one year only 2 — 3 students applied. Awards were given by application and
consideration would be given to applicants’ financial background, depending on the
income of the household and the extent to which the student could secure funding from
other sources.

We noted that the discretionary awards system had been established to assist students
to gain second degrees, for which little or no other funding was available but that the
situation had now changed and there were a range of other funding that students might
access. Having also noted that the Council was required to publish their decision as
widely as possible we report that we approved a determination not to take up the power
to grant Post Compulsory Discretionary Awards in 2007/08 financial year. We also
agreed that the Notice of the Determination be published on the Council’'s website and
that the College of North East London, Haringey Adult Learning Service and the Sixth
Form Centre, be informed accordingly. We further agreed that, in future, authority to
agree the Notice of Determination be delegated to the Director of the Children and
Young People’s Service in consultation with the Executive Member for Children and
Young People.

Enterprise and Regeneration

GLS SITE - LEGAL AGREEMENT WITH THE OWNERS FOR GROWTH AREA
FUNDING

We considered a report that advised us that the Council had successfully bid for
£2.502m for the GLS site from the Growth Area Fund (GAF) Round 2. The grant was to
be used to:

e Provide direct pedestrian and vehicular access through an improved and refurbished

bridge under Ferry Lane, which was a busy road to the south of the site for the existing
communities from the Ferry Lane Estate into the Hale Village development;

e Construct a seamless pedestrian concourse from the current road level into the site;
e Remove the existing underground air raid shelters;
e Carry out enabling works which provided for potential bridge links across the railway to

the west and across the River Lea to the east; and

e Un-culvert a watercourse to provide an enhanced setting and element of open space

and a Sustainable Urban Drainage System which would contribute to enhancing the
setting and open space provision within the Lee Valley Regional Park, within which this
culvert laid.

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 70

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 15/2006-07 Page 6
COUNCIL 19 MARCH 2007

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.

7.1

7.2

We were advised that although the grant was from the Central Government, the Council
was acting as administrator as with the other GAF projects and that a funding agreement
for this grant had been entered into with the Department for Communities and Local
Government (DCLG) in July 2006. However, as the site was in private ownership it was
necessary for the Council to enter into a legal agreement with the owners to release the
money as the works progressed. The legal agreement would protect the Council’s
position should a situation arise where the money had to be clawed back or suspended
by the DCLG.

We were also advised that the agreement would be drafted to reiterate the conditions
stipulated in the GAF Funding Agreement which had been signed by the Council with
DCLG. It would also emphasise the Council’s position regarding issues around potential
claw back and suspension of funds. The general principles within the agreement would
be as follows:

It would have the same time limit as the DCLG agreement for consistency;

It would deal specifically with the development and works associated with the grant
itself;

It would deal with systems for dispute resolution;

It would make reference to the DCLG agreement where applicable including, for
example, the milestones agreed in the DCLG agreement.

Having noted that a signed legal agreement between the Council and the owners of the
GLS site (Ferryboat Properties Ltd) was required to ensure the Council’s legal and
financial positions regarding the funds were secure and that the proposed agreement
was the most effective way of securing the Council’s position, we report that we
authorised the preparation and signing of a funding agreement with Ferryboat Properties
Ltd for a total GAF grant sum of £2,502,000.

Housing
RENT AND TENANTS SERVICE CHARGE INCREASES 2007/08

We considered a report which sought our approval to the rent and service charge
increases for tenants for 2007/08. The Council will be aware that we had been complying
with the Government’s Rent Restructuring policy since it was introduced in 2003/04. This
required rents to converge on “Formula” rents by 2011 and included caps and limits to
moderate “Formula” rents and to constrain individual increases in any one year. Last
year, the Government applied a new ‘ceiling’ of 5% on the average rent increase, the
effects of which on local authority’s income were compensated for in Subsidy. Due to the
low inflation rate last year (2.7%) the Council’s increase was below this level and so the
‘ceiling’ did not come into effect.

We were informed that in calculating the 2007 increase, the September 2007 RPI of
3.6% (and formulae set out in the Housing Subsidy Determination) meant that the
“Formula” rent increase was significantly higher than last year which resulted, after the
application of the same caps and limits of last year, in a calculated average increase of

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 71

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 15/2006-07 Page 7
COUNCIL 19 MARCH 2007

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

8.2

6.2% for 2007, assuming a 5% increase for Hostels. The 5% ceiling would therefore
come into effect.

Within the average increase of 6.2% (£3.735 million), there was a large range of rent
increases (and decreases) on individual properties as a result of the application of the
rent restructuring formula. The Council had discretion over how to reduce the average
increase by 1.2% down to the ceiling, although the Government’s expectations were that
the spirit of rent restructuring should be observed. Further constraints were that the
application should not be “unreasonable”, and that the application should not be such as
to be disproportionately loaded onto Housing Benefit. The reduction of 1.2% represented
some £610,000 in rent income regardless of the method used to contain the increase to
5%.

With the agreement of the Council, Homes for Haringey consulted tenants on the options
available to contain the overall rent increase to 5%. The consultation response agreed
with the preferred option of the Council that an average increase of 5% should be applied
by setting a maximum increase of £3.60 per dwelling. The proposed rent and service
charge increase were incorporated within the Housing Revenue Account budget
approved by the Council on 5 February 2007. The increases were assumed in the
balanced budget position reported and it was noted that the capping regime had resulted
in a shortfall of potential rental income of £610,000.

We report that we approved the average rent increase of 5% with a maximum increase
per property of £3.60 and the tenant service charge increases as set out below —

e Due to the low take up of garages the rents for these were not increased.

e All general service charges be increased in line with the higher cost of running the
services. The general level of pay and price inflation on these services in 2007/08
was 2.9% and these charges were increased by this percentage.

e For lighting and heating, the increases were based upon prices negotiated by
Corporate Procurement and the allowance of a further anticipated increase of 10% in
September 2007. The weighted average annual increase in 2007/08 was 16.46% for
gas related charges and 14.8% for electricity related service charges and lighting and
heating charges were increased by these percentages

REGISTERED SOCIAL LANDLORD (RSL) PREFERRED PARTNERS

We considered a report which advised us that there were nearly 50 Registered Social
Landlords (RSLs) with stock holdings in Haringey and that a third of these have
developed new homes in Haringey in recent years. The Housing Corporation had a
formal structure of preferred development partners to undertake the current two year
grant funded programme (2006-8) and its recent consultation document on Future
Investment strongly pointed to future grant funded programmes being limited to a
relatively small number of preferred partners.

The report proposed that we could more efficiently direct our resources by adopting
similar arrangements on delivery of new housing development by focusing on a group of
preferred partners. Such a strategic approach would enable a stronger working

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 72

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 15/2006-07 Page 8
COUNCIL 19 MARCH 2007

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

relationship to evolve with a smaller group of dedicated developing associations in
Haringey and would provide incentives for them to improve their services as landlord and
play a wider role in community initiatives in the Borough. The successful parties would
devise and agree a protocol with the Council covering such issues as delivery of the
development programme, promotion of positive working relations between the RSLs and
the Council, performance expectations (for example in tackling local and neighbourhood
problems) and ways to resolve disputes between the parties.

RSLs that were not selected as preferred partners would still have an important role to
play as landlords in the Borough. They would not be ruled out of future development as
up to 20% of the new programme each year might be set aside for special initiatives.
Smaller, specialist and Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) associations or those seeking
occasional development opportunities would be encouraged to channel their new housing
projects through one of the selected RSLs.

Following a process begun by the Chief Executive’s Management Board sixteen
submissions had been received from RSLs which were scored individually with
weightings applied in respect of development delivery (50%), landlord performance
(20%), community and neighbourhood investment (20%) and organisational
effectiveness (10%). Of the sixteen submissions made, six scored more than 50% of the
maximum potential scores allocated against the questionnaire. A second stage in the
selection process was held with Member involvement with visits being made to the RSLs
with seventh and eighth place scores from Stage 1 together with two of the top six placed
RSLs and informal presentations being given. Following Stage 2 it was agreed that the
top six RSLs be recommended as preferred partners.

The six highest scores were recorded by the following:

Circle Anglia;

London and Quadrant;
Metropolitan Housing Group;
Presentation;

Servite Houses; and

Family Mosaic Group.

Four of these housing associations were major volume developing housing associations
in the north sub-region, one is the largest BME in London in terms of stock and current
allocation, while Servite was a smaller scale developer with a positive emphasis on
working in Haringey. These six RSLs were landlords for over 40% of the housing
association stock in the Borough.

We noted that if we supported selection of the above-named RSLs, officers were
satisfied that the full spectrum of housing needs could be met in ongoing new
development programmes (including affordable housing for the homeless and general
needs, home buy, intermediate housing, and special or supported housing) and that
some of these associations had previously acted as development agents for smaller or
specialist organisations in Haringey, and had active working relationships with several
RSLs who were not being recommended for selection as full preferred partners in this

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 73

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 15/2006-07 Page 9
COUNCIL 19 MARCH 2007

8.7

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

exercise. We also noted that a robust performance management and monitoring system
would be put in place.

We report that we approved the six named Registered Social Landlords as the Council’s
preferred partners and asked that a further report be submitted to us on the protocol to
be agreed with the successful partners especially in relation to performance
management monitoring arrangements and including on the question of a possible
probationary period.

Community Involvement
THE BRIDGE NDC DRAFT DELIVERY PLAN 2007/08

The Council will be aware that the Bridge NDC Partnership Board Partnership Board has
been operating through three themes:

e Neighbourhood Services (Housing, Environment and Crime)
e Education, Employment and Enterprise and
e Health, Social Care, Sport and Leisure.

The Partnership Board was required to produce an annual delivery plan, which set down
its plans for the coming year and to set the budget forecast for its programme to 2011.
We considered a report which advised us that, for next year (2007/08) the draft Delivery
Plan which set out the strategic vision of the Partnership Board for the delivery of the
programme had to be submitted to Government Office for London (GOL) by 16 March
2007. We noted that at the time of our meeting the draft Plan was still at the “work in
progress” stage as the Partnership Board had lately received notification of a revised
funding allocation for 2007/08 and was still working through some of the revised detail
with its key partners.

The Partnership’s priorities for 2007/08 and beyond were to invest resources to meet
community priorities -

e To change the face of The Bridge NDC area, which includes delivery of Wards
Corner, 341-379 Seven Sisters Road and St Ann’s Bridge

To target and challenge crime and grime

To raise local expectations for improved services

To challenge service partners to improve service delivery

To create and /or work with sustainable local partnerships to continue to drive high
service standards after the NDC lifetime

These priorities would remain central to the delivery of the programme. Also, there was
now an emphasis on the capital programme which provided some of the facilities under-
pinning good sustainable service provision including the new building for the Triangle
Children’s , Young People and Community Centre. The Delivery Plan 2006/07 delivered
the new Children’s Centre and the external, security and environmental improvements to
homes and defensible space on the Suffolk Road Estate.

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 74

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 15/2006-07 Page
COUNCIL 19 MARCH 2007 10
9.5 The Board’s policy development had been influenced by the joined up working with the

Council on the Haringey’s Local Area Agreement and the Board was committed to
assisting with the development of the four blocks of the LAA:

o Safer Stronger Communities

. Healthier Communities and Older People

o Children and Young People

o Economic Development and Enterprise

The NDC Partnership was also working to add value to the delivery of the objectives of
the Haringey Community Plan.

9.6 We noted that both the Bridge New Deal for Communities draft Delivery Plan

10.

10.1

10.2

Programme for 2007/08 and the final Delivery Plan were subject to the approval of the
GOL and, having also noted the Council’s critical role as Accountable Body both in
supporting and delivering the Bridge New Deal for Communities programme, we report
that we endorsed the Bridge New Deal for Communities draft Delivery Plan Programme
for 2007/08.

Environment
REVIEW OF POLICY AND TECHNICAL GUIDANCE FOR VEHICLE CROSSOVERS

We considered a report which proposed revised technical guidance for footway vehicular
crossovers to reflect a greater emphasis on sustaining the street scene environment and
which sought our approval to adopt the revised guidance for use in determining future
applications for crossovers. The report also sought our approval to revised fees and
charges associated with requests for the construction of crossovers. In connection with
this report we also received a deputation of concerned residents who spoke in general
support of the proposals contained in the report.

We noted that following an in depth review to evaluate existing policy officers were
proposing modifications to current guidance notes for crossovers which reflected the
Council’s commitment to the Nottingham Declaration to reduce greenhouse gases by
stipulating more stringent controls on crossover applications. While these controls were
designed, where possible, to protect the existing ‘green’ street scene environment
because of permitted development rights the Council could not prevent residents turning
their front gardens into hard standing areas, except in Article 4 designated areas. (An
Article 4 Direction gave the Council special powers under the 1995 General
Development Order to restrict permitted development rights for householders).

10.3 In cases where residents were in the habit of driving illegally over the footway the

Council had powers to:

e install physical barriers to prevent continued illegal use and hence prevent damage to
the footway; and /or

o effect legal action.

The Council did and would continue to take enforcement action in such circumstances.

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 75

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 15/2006-07 Page
COUNCIL 19 MARCH 2007 11

10.4 A number of new changes to the policy for crossovers and hard standing areas were
proposed -

New Crossover Controls:

» |n considering an application, the Council would assess the need for safe and efficient
operation of an existing Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ). Applications would be refused
where it was deemed that the construction of a crossover and subsequent loss of parking
spaces would have a detrimental impact to on-street parking within a CPZ.

= The proposed application fee for a preliminary site visit and preparation of a cost
estimate was increased from £50 to £100 to reflect the actual cost to the Council.

= The cost of installing access bars across constructed crossovers was to be retained at
£60. (Access bars were only advisory and were not enforceable by law, although the
Council had powers to remove vehicles parked across these bars and reported as
denying access to a hard standing via a crossover.)

» The cost of amending Traffic Management Orders for a crossover in a CPZ would be
recovered through a charge of £1,300.

= Construction costs would rise annually to reflect inflationary increases and supervision,
administration and overhead charges would remain at 40% of construction costs.

Hardstanding Controls:

= There must be sufficient space within the boundary of the property to ensure a parked
vehicle did not overhang the footway. Vehicles must be parked at 90 degrees to the
carriageway and forecourts must be a minimum of 4.8m deep.

=  Where the hard standing involved removal of soft landscaped gardens within the
property, the applicant must arrange to keep the hard surface to a minimum (where
feasible and practical). This could be achieved by creating two paved tracks wide enough
to accommodate the car wheels. However, applicants were to be strongly advised to
consult with the Planning and Development section for further guidance and advice to
ensure proposed works did not detract from the character of the surroundings and
drainage was not compromised.

10.5 A list of all the conditions for both crossovers and hard standing areas was appended to
the report and the Planning Department had produced a guide to householders called
‘Greening Your Home’ and was intending further awareness raising activities on the
negative impact of front garden parking. Copies of ‘Greening Your Home’ were available
on the Council’s web site. We were advised that since the proposed criteria were more
stringent than the current conditions it was anticipated that the number of crossover
applications would reduce. Currently the Council received around 500 applications a
year with 20% of these typically being followed through to construction.

10.6 With regard to the representations made to us earlier by the deputation we resolved that
the policy in relation to crossovers should be reviewed again in six months time and that,
in the meantime, the Executive Member for Environment meet with members of the
deputation to discuss their representations further. We approved the technical standards
in order to determine future applications for crossovers set out in an Appendix to the
report and we agreed the new charging mechanism as set out below -

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 76

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 15/2006-07 Page
COUNCIL 19 MARCH 2007 12
Ref Item Current Proposed
No. Charge (£) Charge(£)

1. Crossover application and estimate 50 100
2. Light duty crossovers

(construction and supervision), 500 530*
3. Medium duty crossovers

(construction and supervision), 750 800"
4. Heavy duty crossover

(construction and supervision) 1200 1270*
5. Painting of Access Bars

(white lines in front of crossovers) 60 60
6. Traffic Management Order amendments 0 300

11.

12.

* Denotes annual price increase to rates in the term contract to cover price increase in
materials and labour.

REVIEW OF PARKING FEES AND CHARGES

We initially considered a report on this matter at our meeting on 23 January 2007 arising
from which we authorised officers to commence statutory consultation under the
provisions of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and the Local Authorities’ Traffic
Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996 on proposed changes
affecting fees and parking charges policy for residents’ and visitors permits, disabled
drivers badges, car parks and pay and display bays as summarised in a table appended
to the report. We also noted that a report on the responses to consultation together with
information on any other relevant factors that we should consider would be presented to
a future meeting for decision. The Director of Urban Environment was authorised to
approve the Essential Permits Scheme being revised with the implementation of a new
scheme in consultation with the Executive Member for Environment and Conservation.

However, our decision was subject to a call in under Part I3 of the Constitution and
following consideration by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee it was referred back to
us for further consideration with a recommendation that the proposed consultation period
for the Parking Fees and Charges be increased from three to six weeks. We were also
asked to take account of concerns voiced by Members of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee over the consultation process, and to ensure that a revised consultation
strategy was put in place.

Having considered the recommendation of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and
noted the concerns expressed we report that we approved the proposed consultation

period for the Parking Fees and Charges being increased from three to six weeks and to
a revised consultation strategy.

Leader

ACTIONS TAKEN UNDER URGENCY PROCEDURES

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 77

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE. No. 15/2006-07 Page
COUNCIL 19 MARCH 2007 13

12.1  We were informed of the following actions taken by Directors in consultation with
Executive Members.

Review of Parking Fees and Charges

Approval to correction of typographical errors in report presented to us on 23 January
as follows —

e Appendix D where the charge that applied to band 2 of the emissions based
charging structure in relation to second and subsequent permits per
household read £50 instead of £60 as in the main body of the report.

e Page 6 of the main body of the report, bands 3 and 4 corrected to read ‘151 —
180 CO2 g/km and 186 CO2 g/km and over respectively’.

Council Mortgage Interest Rates — 1 April to 30 September 2007

Approval to a Statutory Declaration of the Council’'s Local Average Rate of Interest of
7.49% to be applied to all of the Council’s variable rate mortgages with effect from 1
April 2007.

13. DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS

13.1 We were informed of significant actions which involved expenditure of more than £50,000
taken by Directors under delegated powers.

Director of Corporate Resources

ICT Technical & Design Consultancy for New 6™ Form Centre & Building Schools for the
Future Programme - Award of Contract to ICT Technical and Design Consultancy to
Cambridge Education Ltd. in the sum of £249,930.

Produced by Member Services
Contact - Executive Bodies Team 8489 2923



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 79

REPORT OF THE GENERAL Page 1
PURPOSES COMMITTEE No.04/2006-07

COUNCIL 19 MARCH 2007

Chair: Deputy Chair:
Councillor Eddie Griffith Councillor Charles Adje
INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report to full Council arises from two reports considered by the
General Purposes Committee at our meeting on 8 March 2007. Both
reports resulted in recommendations from the Committee to full Council to
amend, or consider amending, several Parts of the Council’s Constitution.
In the first case full Council is asked to make the Scheme of Members’
Allowances for 2007/08. In the other case full Council is asked to consider,
and approve in principle, a set of amendments to different Parts of the
Constitution that will provide for the implementation of the Gambling Act
2005. Since the relevant provisions of the Act will not come into force until
May this year, the Gambling Act changes must be formally agreed by
Annual Council on 21 May and many of them must then be formally
confirmed by the Licensing Committee in June.

1.2 It is not practicable to await the completion of the ongoing Review of the
Council’s Constitution before full Council considers these matters and,
therefore, they are being recommended to this March meeting.

ITEM FOR DECISION FROM THE MEETING OF THE
COMMITTEE ON 8 MARCH 2007

2. MAKING THE SCHEME OF MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES FOR
2007/08

2.1 We received a report on the Scheme of Members’ Allowances for
2007/08. The Scheme for 2006/07 had been amended by full Council
on 13 November 2006 when increases were agreed in accordance with
the recommendations of the interim report of the Independent Panel on
Councillors’ Remuneration in London.

2.2  The November Council decided that allowances should be increased
from 1 April 2007 in line with the percentage increase agreed in the
national pay settlement for Local Authority Officers. This figure is not
yet known but provision is made in the new Scheme for this percentage
increase to the Basic, Mayoral, Special Responsibility and Co-optees’
Allowances. We noted that the figure, when agreed for officers, will be
back-dated to 1 April and paid to Members as soon as possible.



2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Page 80

Page 2

The new Scheme for 2007/08 is set out at Appendix 1 to this report
which shows the text changes as compared to the November version
of the 2006/07 Scheme. Another change is to the Co-optees'
Allowances in paragraph 7.01. This is a minor change, required by the
relevant Regulations, to express these allowances as annualised sums
rather than sums paid per meeting. It has been assumed that there will
be five meetings per year.

We noted that the rate for babysitting and dependant’s care in
paragraph 8.01 (a) had originally been fixed at £5.05 by reference to
the hourly national adult minimum wage. We agreed to recommend
that this rate should now equal the new figure, just announced by the
Government, of £5.72 per hour and that this be subject to automatic
annual adjustment in line with the national adult minimum wage.

We considered the allowances for the Mayor and Deputy Mayor and
we concluded that these should be increased to reflect more accurately
the expenses of their offices and the hard work involved in undertaking
their duties. We are therefore recommending that the additional
allowances be increased to £15,000 for the Mayor and £7,500 for the
Deputy Mayor.

We were advised that it was a legal requirement to make the Scheme
afresh each year before the end of March and that Members must have
regard to the report of the Independent Panel when they did so. We
noted that the Allowances proposed in Appendix 1 were no greater
than those recommended in the Independent Panel’s report which is
attached as Appendix 2.

WE RECOMMEND

That Council adopt the Scheme of Members’ Allowances for 2007/08
set out in Appendix 1 to this report and that Part C.7 of the Council’s
Constitution be amended accordingly with effect from 1 April 2007.

ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL IN PRINCIPLE
FROM THE MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE ON 8 MARCH 2007

3.

3.1

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE GAMBLING ACT 2005

We received a report on the Gambling Act 2005 which comes into force
at various stages this year and which will be fully in operation on 1
September 2007. The Act will create a wholly new system of controls
over gambling in Great Britain. The most important controls will be



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Page 81

exercise by the new national regulator, the Gambling Commission.
Local Councils will take over many other functions from the
Page 3

Magistrates’ Courts. These will include granting premises licences for
bingo premises, betting shops, adult gaming centres and family
entertainment centres. The Council will also grant permits for gaming,
gaming machines and small lotteries.

At the meeting of full Council on 13 November 2006 Members resolved
to adopt Haringey’s Statement of Gambling Policy which will guide the
exercise of the Council’s functions under the Act. This Statement of
Gambling Policy reflects the guidance of the Gambling Commission
and the three national licensing objectives for gambling. These
objectives are: (i) to prevent gambling being a source of crime or
disorder, (ii) ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open
way, and (iii) protecting children and other vulnerable persons from
being harmed or exploited by gambling.

We were advised that the terms of reference of the full Council should
be amended to include the new statutory power to resolve not to issue
any casino premises licences in the Borough for the next three years.
This amendment is set out on page 3 of Appendix 3 to this report.
Since the Council has made no application to be considered as a
possible site for a large or small casino, an application for a casino is
unlikely to arise.

Most of the Council’s functions under the Gambling Act are statutorily
referred to the existing Licensing Committee which can delegate them
down to its Licensing Sub-Committees. There is a choice about the
power to fix the fees payable for premises licences and related matters
under the Gambling Act. This power can either be retained by the full
Council or delegated to the Licensing Committee and we agreed to
recommend that the Committee, as the specialist body, should
discharge this function. We were advised that, legally, the fees would
be subject to maximum limits and that the overall fee income should
equate to the cost of providing the service as nearly as possible.

The proposed terms of reference of the Licensing Committee are set
out in Appendix 4 to this report. The Committee will be responsible for
monitoring and co-ordinating procedures under both the Gambling Act
2005 and the Licensing Act 2003 which relates to alcohol sales and
public entertainments. The Committee will be consulted informally
about future revisions to the Statement of Gambling Policy. It will retain
jurisdiction to hear individual contested applications for premises where
500 or more persons would be present.

The proposed terms of reference for the Licensing Sub-Committees are
set out in Appendix 5 to this report. We noted that the new functions
under the Gambling Act would largely mirror the existing position under



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Page 82

the Licensing Act 2003. The three Member Sub-Committees would
conduct hearings and decide the contested applications where there
Page 4

were objections from local residents or responsible authorities including
the Police. The last section of Appendix 5 sets out the functions that
are new under the Gambling Act. These include decisions on contested
applications for club gaming permits and applications for more than 5
gaming machines in public houses.

We considered the additional delegations to officers needed to
implement the Gambling Act which are contained in Appendix 6 to this
report. The allocation of functions between Members and officers is
again very similar to the arrangements which already work effectively in
the operation of the Licensing Act 2003. Whenever there is a statutory
right to a hearing or a legal right to opt for a hearing, then the case is
referred to Members. The non-contentious, procedural, administrative
and technical matters are delegated to the Assistant Director
Enforcement and his Licensing Manager.

We asked about arrangements to make officers accountable for the
exercise of their delegated powers. We were assured that reports
came regularly to the Licensing Committee about the operation of the
licensing system and this would continue. We agreed that officers
should have powers to act promptly within agreed policy and
procedures and to take effective enforcement action.

We were advised that the existing Local Licensing Procedure Rules
currently used for hearings under the Licensing Act 2003, could readily
be adapted for the very similar hearings under the Gambling Act. Only
a few changes are recommended and these are set out in Appendix 7
to this report. The most significant is that the parties to a hearing under
the Gambling Act 2005 must be allowed an equal maximum period of
time for the conduct of the whole case. In contrast, under the Licensing
Act 2003 the parties were only limited to an equal maximum period of
time for their respective closing addresses.

As mentioned above, the relevant provisions of the Gambling Act do
not come into force until the beginning of May 2007. We were advised
that a formal decision by the Council should, therefore, await the
Annual Council on 21 May to be legally effective. Annual Council will
be asked to amend its own terms of reference and those of the
Licensing Committee. The decisions about the terms of reference of
the Licensing Sub-Committees, the officer scheme of delegation and
the Local Licensing Procedure Rules must, for legal reasons, be
formally confirmed by the June meeting of the Licensing Committee.

This report comes to this March Council meeting because it would be
more appropriate to have any detailed debate on these matters before



Page 83

Annual Council although Annual Council itself must make a free and
unfettered decision.

Page 5
WE RECOMMEND

That Council consider and approve in principle, subject to formal
decisions in due course by Annual Council and the June Licensing
Committee, the amendments to the terms of reference of the full
Council, the Licensing Committee and the Licensing Sub-Committees,
and the alterations to the scheme of delegation to officers and the
Local Licensing Procedure Rules set out in Appendices 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7
to this report.



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 85

APPENDIX 1

[the words recommended for deletion are shown struck through and
the words recommended for addition or insertion are shown in italics
and underlined]

1.

1.01

Part C.7
Members’ Allowances
Scheme

SCHEME FOR THE PAYMENT OF MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES

Made in accordance with the Local Authorities (Members’

Allowances)

2.01

2.02

3.01

3.02

(England) Regulations 2003 and in force for the municipal year
2006/2007 2007/08 (i.e. 1 April 2006 2007 to 31 March 2007 2008).

BASIC ALLOWANCE

Each Councillor will be entitled to receive the sum of £10,000 by
way of Basic Allowance (subject to an increase from 1 April 2007
in_line with the percentage increase agreed in the national
settlement for Local Authority officers) .

If a Councillor does not serve as such for the whole 12-month
period or becomes disqualified, he/she will only be entitled to
receive pro-rata payment for the period(s) during which he/she
actually was a serving Councillor. This principle applies to service
on Council bodies by independent Standards Committee
members and education representatives on scrutiny bodies.

INCLUDED EXPENSES

Travel Expenses.
The Basic Allowance includes all fravel within the M25.
Councillors are not entitled to any form of concession or special
permit as Councillors for parking in the Borough.

Mobile Telephones.
The Basic Allowance includes Councillors' telephone call
charges.



Page 86

4, MAYORAL ALLOWANCES
4.01 The additional allowances for the Mayor and Deputy Mayor are:

(a)The Mayor is entitled to an additional allowance of £+5;000-
£15,000.

(b)The Deputy Mayor is entitled to an additional allowance of
£2:500; £7,500.

(subject to an increase from 1 April 2007 in line with the percentage
increase agreed in the
national settlement for Local Authority officers) .

5. SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCES

5.01 Haringey Council will allocate Special Responsibility Allowances
in three bands, to Councillors who take on certain additional
roles. All allowances are subject to an increase from 1 April 2007
in_line with the percentage increase agreed in the national
settlement for Local Authority officers.

Band Position Special Total
Allowance Allowance
Band 4 e |eader £30,000 £40,000
Band 3 e 9 Xx Executive Members £22,500 £32,500
e Opposition Leader
e Chair of Overview and

Scrutiny Committee

Band 2 e Chair of General £15,000 £25,000
Purposes Committee

e Chief Whip

e Chair of Planning
Applications Sub-

Band 2 Committee
(continued | « Chair of Licensing
) Committee

e Chair of Alexandra
Palace and Park Board

e Chair of Audit
Committee

e Chair of Pensions Panel

e Opposition Deputy
Leader

e Opposition Chief Whip

e 4 x Councillors on




Page 87

Overview and Scrutiny
Commiftee
Band 1 7 x Chairs of Area £7,500 £17,500
Assemblies

6.01

7.01

8.

8.01

MULTIPLE RESPONSIBILITIES

Where a Councillor holds more than one post of special
responsibility, he/she may only receive one Special Responsibility
Allowance. Where a Councillor holds more than one post of
special responsibility and the posts have Special Responsibility
Allowances of different monetary values, the Councillor would
receive the higher one. For the purposes of this paragraph, the
Mayor and Deputy Mayor count as posts of special responsibility.

CO-OPTEES’ ALLOWANCES

Each independent Standards Committee member and each
education representative on scrutiny bodies is entitled to an
adllowance of £585 £H7permeeting excepting the Chair of the
Standards Committee who is entitled to an allowance of £1,200.
£240 per-meeling—paoyable—on—an—annuglised-basis.—, These
allowances are subject to an increase from 1 April 2007 in line
with the percentage increase agreed in the national settlement
for Local Authority officers.

This incorporates all other allowances, with the exception of
babysitting and dependants allowance. No allowances are
payable to others who are not elected Councillors

BABYSITTING AND DEPENDANTS ALLOWANCE

Councillors and non-elected members can claim this allowance
based on the following :

(a)That reimbursement be made at a maximum rate of £5:05
£5.72 per hour. The period of payment should include the fime
of the meeting, together with reasonable fravelling time of
the member, plus any necessary tfravelling expenses of the
carer to and from their home.

(b) Children over the age of 16 must not be claimed for, unless
suffering from an iliness or disability making constant care
essential.

TRAVELLING AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCE




mile

mile

10.

Page 88

Councillors can claim this allowance for attending approved
meetings, tfraining and conferences etc. only to the extent that it
involves fravel outside the M25. Claims must be based on the
following :

(a)The mileage rate for travel by private car is 34.6 pence per
mile. An exira 3 pence per mile is payable for each
passenger for whom a travelling allowance would otherwise
be payable. The cost of tolls, ferries and parking charges can
be claimed.

(b)The mileage rate for travel by solo motor cycle is :

Not exceeding 150 cc 8.5 pence per
mile

Over 150 cc but not over 500 cc 12.3 pence per
Over 500 cc 16.5 pence per

(c) On public transport only the ordinary or cheaper fare can be
claimed where more than one class is available

(d)The cost of a taxi, including a reasonable tip, can be claimed
only in case of urgency or where public fransport is not
practicable or reasonably available

(e) The maximum rates for subsistence allowance on approved
duties are as follows:

For an absence of more than 4 hours before 11.00
£4.92

For an absence of more than 4 hours including lunchtime

between 12.00 and 14.00
£6.77

For an absence of more than 4 hours including the
period 15.00 to 18.00 £2.67

For an absence of more than 4 hours ending after 19.00
£8.38

CLAIMS AND PAYMENTS



Page 89

10.01 The Basic Allowance and Special Responsibility Allowances will
be paid in equal monthly instalments.

10.02 The Co-optees’ Allowance must be claimed by, and will be paid
at, the end of the municipal year, subject to paragraphs 2.02
above and 10.04 below.

10.03 All claims for Traveling and Subsistence Allowance and
Babysitting and Dependants Allowance must be made within
two months of the relevant meeting or the costs being incurred
by the Councillor or non-elected member, subject to paragraph
10.04 below..

10.04 If any Allowance under paragraphs 10.02 or 10.03 is not claimed
within the prescribed time limit, the Head of Members’ Services
shall have a discretion to make the payment nonetheless.

10.05 Any Councillor or non-elected member may elect to forego
his/her entitlement to all or part of any allowance by giving
written notice at any time to the Head of Members’ Services.

11.  WITHHOLDING AND REPAYMENT OF ALLOWANCES

11.01 The Standards Committee or any of its Sub-Committees is
authorised to withdraw the payment of the allowances set out
below in whole or in part, as appropriate, in the event of a
Councillor being suspended or partially suspended. The
allowances covered by this provision are the following:

(a)Basic Allowance;

(b)Special Responsibility Allowance;

(c) Travelling and Subsistence Allowances; and
(d) Co-optees Allowance.

11.02 Where the Standards Committee/Sub-Committee withdraws any
of the above allowances in whole or in part and it franspires that
the Councillor has already been paid in whole or in part for the
relevant period of suspension or partial suspension, then the

Standards Committee/Sub-Committee may require that the
Councillor repay the relevant amount to the Council.

12. MEMBERSHIP OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME



Page 90

12.01 All eligible Councillors are allowed to join the Local Government
Pension scheme in respect of the Basic and Special Responsibility
Allowances paid to them as part of this scheme of allowances.



Page 91

.

.
.

-

oy
o

-

.

.

.

L
o

.

.

%MWMW%,

LONDON
COUNCILS



Page 92

2002 13010 81
uopuoy

yuEny o 559 I 383 wjonig Aaupoy

g

MV

‘sspLgesip yitm sjdoad Joy

pue sbuljeswi a1e] 1eye swoy sfewinof 65 odsuery Jo 1503 sy toj Juawhed aprosd

03 dwByds e 104 sjeudosdde aq Aew 3L a1ayMm SILRISWNDID B1e 219y] asubiodal em
‘3dueMOT|E diseq ay3 jo Wed 2q pinoys 18AeL YBNoIog BauL 9A3YBY 03 BNUKUOD 3M BIIUM "HT

*SIOTHOUNGY 104 stesiesdde

douruLopad PIdNPOIUL BARY YILYM SJIDUNODY ISOUY PUDLILIOD am 19A3MOH "1eaib 003 aue

SBNNILP Jedtivesd AU} 1YY PAOULAUOD 318 BM 'SUCHIDRINIE ST SEY SIYT WM "SIOPPUNCD
103 Aed pajeias aduewopad Bupdnponut jo Anigissod sy Ajnjaied palspisuod saey o "€1

“Ho[IMosaL jeunoy Mdwts e AQ paAsLYde g UeD SIYY JRY) SAILDG OM LBYY ‘PUSLILIGIDL

am sjepdn jenuue su3 ueyy Jaylo abueyd ou aq 03 St 3:3y3 i Inq Leak jedpdiuni

42BD 4O IS Y3 3B dWAYdS By} jo uopdope-as annbas 03 sieadde €00z suogenbey

(puebug) (saouemolly Siaquisly) sauoyIny 12307 01 uonenbay eyl sjepaidde ay

“Juwaies Aed Juswuianob 1ed0] Jenuue ayy ui nby aunpesy ayl YlM SOUBPIOIR UL
fjenuue pajepdn 2q PINOYS PUBWIWODAL BM SEILBMOTIE SUYI JBY} PUSILIOIB! 0} ANUYUOI Y, 21

S497 9y uiof 03 pamolie 8q pInoys 7 Jo abe syl MOJRG SIOTIIUNG JiB TRy}
pustiwonal s Aepylig Y/ 18yl 310j39 S497 3yl uiol 03 31gihIe Mou 318 SIODUNGD
1ey3 os pabuewyd saey suogenbas uoisuad ‘900z AN 92 40 J31I3] ANO UL PIIRIS SY T

-abueyd siy) 49as 03 JUBWIWIBACY 03 uoLIRIUDSAIdRE HHEW M am Ing ‘abueyd

aanesibo) ainbar nm sty “awhojdws aareusalie ¥aes ued Keyl yaiym Buunp awy jo

UOLYSAD B 3pLaoid 0F ADUBMOYR PINUIILOD SLIUOW XIS 0) PIPIUL aq pinoys Aayd sjjod sy

18 1895 J19Y] S50 DAL PUR INOJ ‘Baly1 'OM) SPUBRE UL SYYS JO SIUBIIDRL J1 JBYY SIPLSUOD D
's107jun0d 0} sjuawifed juawseniases o) uoneisiBa) 8yl Ul uosiaoid ou Juesaid Je st aiay) 0T

-uaddey 03 SIYT BjgRUR 03 SIOUEISLINDID

ajeudosdde ug saweyds 1ayy ul sjuaweburlie ayew 03 F|ge BG PINOYS S|OUNOY

JBYY PUBWILLODAL B "SIUBWIBIRUD Lons Aofus saakoidws Jeyy Aem awes ayl ul 9ARe)

Ayueyed pue Ajuslew ‘ssauydLs JO 3583 UL 3588D JOU PInoys seouemolje Aiqisuodsal
ewads 1oy ey} 91GRUOSRAI St 1L Jey) 2A1aq am ‘saakojdws Jou dle siopdunod ybnouly ‘6

AJLIOYING 2WES 3Yy) UM
sanp Jo adsas ul o unod € o3 pred ag PINoys yys aue Auo jeyd pue (yys) sxuemopy
Knigisuodsay (eoads B 3A1393: PINOYS SIOIOUNND JO %06 UBYY I0W 10U JBYT IRISNMI O 8

*J01JDUNDY B 4O PaYIadxa SL JeyM 1ea]d

Ryoamosqe axyew 03 uonduasap gol e yons Jdope pinoys SjOUN) e I8y} 3A21j2G 4 '8

X3uly 18 PAYIeIIR St SI0UN0D Joj uondudsep gol pasiaal y suopde 1ayl uo Buiodal

pue sjqeiunodde butag o3 1aylo ayy pue juswdolarap pue Bupuier; Alessadau Supepapun

03 SeYR]B SUQ "SIOJIUNOD JO 2101 DISEQ By} Jo uoRdUISIP INO O] SUOLIPPR OM] HEW M
jeudoidde us Anessusb are podes 102 Mo ug suoldUISSP 8101 3UY 8UY BABNRY B T/

“1s0d sup3 g0 sengiqisuodsal sazeasb ayy 3aya: o3 Busaw sad gv23 Jo

338l B UM Ing ‘Siseq BWRS Y} UO ddUBMOR $981d0-02 B BAL8IB) PINOYS BR131WW0)

SPIEPURYS BYY JO iteyd Juapuadapui By} JeY] pUBWIWOIAL B “/T1F & SPUB)S MOU

ainby swyy ‘pajepdn -bugasut sad gOTF Jo 918 B e sbuigesw o ssqunu padadxa 3yl uo

paseq aduemole $383d0-00 JenuUe UB PUSWIWOIAL oM 10das TO0Z N0 U *FBTILWWIOT Jpny

ue o steyd Juapuadapul ayj Joj pue $333d0-03 UOIILINPT 10 ‘DITHWWO) SPIRPURIS 3U) U0
Butaiss asoy3 104 Ajuo 3peWs 3G PINOYS SIDGWIW Paldo-07 10§ SIIUBMOYE Jey] BABYSY B °9

oM} pueg JO 18A9)
Ioybuy 3y3 38 papiemal aq PINOYS 2931WWCY Buitueld au3 J0 1tey) a3 Jeyy ajepdoidde
SE3438YY 3A91Rq oM ‘sased yons Uy “Alxaldwod 3)qesspisucd o sansst Butuueid adey
syfinoiog uopuoT swog JuBwUIRACE 1830} Jo Ajiqisucdses Juepiodwl e s1 butuueyd 'g

“Jodal 127jn4 N0 UL ING WAL 19S JjM am pur eae syt ut eonoesd

poob Jo sajdiexa ale Iy "sansst sybnosog ay Butssaippe ur diysiopes) ay 's9j01

J0LUDS DI0W BYT UL ‘PUR JIDUNOD BU3 LIYIM SISRIRIUL Moyl Buguasaidas pue sjueniisuos

12y3 yum Butsten ut ssaleIussaidel paydsle 1y} Jo adueiiopad ayl ue Juawabpnl

pawlojul ue xew 0} F1B40308)9 3y} J)GRLB JIM SLYJ "SBLILALOR Jtayy Joy Apygnd Junodoe
SIOTIUN0S 3oyl Juenlodut st 1t *asodosd IM YDIYM LOIIRIDUNWSE JO SPAB] BYY 104 WINJal U] "y

-a1eudoldde st iyl ataym Jauige) syl Uiyl Kgigisuodsal

40 519A3] JUatayip F51uH0das 03 S1OUN0Y Jwiad 0] OM] pueg Ul YIPIM JUSOYNS

SL 21841 124] 2ABI2Q SM ‘]AA3) DWES BU3 18 SISGUIBW 13ULGR) B}RIBUNWAL 03 SJIOUNT]

Auew 104 Syqisuas aq Aew 3 yBnouy “sieylo ueyy Buipuewap siow aq Aew s3)01 jeuge)
awos jey) 1dadoe am ‘vogesiuebio pue aINRNS JusWWIRACE 1830) UL sebueyd yup *

™

UG pueg W duemMoye ue Buljusw se
PaylIuapt 3G pinoys s8]0 Yons Jeyl JULY] ap "SinInj Ayl JO S1vpea) ayj 404 sagiunuoddo
JuswdoreAsp spLavid 05T UED S3LLLGISUOdSal YONG SRIAIBS SuBIp|WY) 1] sojasiiod
Buipuewap Apenopsed Buipjoy sisquaw jauiqe) 03 sjuelsisse pue ‘paford tofew
Jylads e jo dysepes) ‘diysiapes) Aunwwe) o] uoeas ul '6s ‘padojaasp uasq aaey
S2]01 MBU JRYT BUBME BUB DM ‘SUCLIRPUBILLLOIAI INO LY 35343 Passaippe aaey sy “diysiapes)
Ayunwuwod pue Ajjigeauncode ‘ssausarieiuasaidal punole uaag aaey podas 3B
410 2OULS SI01UN0Y Jo 301 auy Buydaye sebueyd utew ayy -sjeudosdde ‘Suay essuab

ul i3S e spueg oy3 03 bulyoenie se payIUSPL BM YDLIUM SBI0J BUY JBYT DABYRG B

Y

'SpUBg BAY BY3J 10} PUB 3JURMOT]Y Jiseq ayl 10j saunby patepdn (im
Ryijiqisuodsal Jo spueg dAY 23 IN0 39S BM Y Xeuuy v “sjeudoidde s st ‘uoneyLL Jog
palepdn ‘TO0Z Ul PApUSWWIOIdS TOURY BYJ YILYM SIDURMOYE JO SWAYIS 3y} Jeyl SAaljeq ap 1
240 Modal N0 UL SUDIRHUSLILIOIBE By ]

‘wayy ydope pinoys sybnosog uopuot e Jeyy abin ap suOepUBWIW0IBS INO

2s10pua uiebe M s1OUNo) uopuot Jeyy adoy yonw AksA ap DasRRs 5t SIIUEMOTIE JO IS
Ly} eyl ansus o} Knp B aABY SIDUNGD Jey] 9A81eq o “aaibe Ajaius ap top Aaul yowym Hiom
Te3iA By 10} predropun Ajjeraush are sioTOUROD JeYY SJUBWWED SUOKT 12BYDLY S “JUSWUIBACE
18207 U0 Hodal WLBLL SIY U] "UOLIR Joj puels 03 ajdoad jo abues sepim e Joj syqissod 1l

Bl URD UDLIEIBUNUIBL BIGRUOSES) B NG JIOJIIDUN0D B SE 331AI85 104 UOLTPALIOW LLeW By} og

30U PINOYS PUR J0U St PIBMAL TRLOURULY "SIBGIUBLL JUBTIBOXE BARL SIIUNGCY WBYEIXT "SIOnOUNED
se anas 0] sjdoad sjqe eine 03 S1UN0) Jo ALjige ay3 uo spuadep Kyeowsp jeao) jo Anenb
BU3 Jeyl 23eydwa 2ie am INg "SNOLUBIUCD BY UED SIIUEMOJIR SI2qUWBW jey] aieme 11am a1e o

*£00Z PUR T00Z 30 S30dal ano pue SUDLIBPUBWILOIDL 953y 40 ausodiued
2 3q 1M suy) reyqissod se uoos se wodal seyny e ysygnd irus opm
TUOPUOT Ut SI0TIDUN0Y 10} UOHIBIBUNIIDS JO MBIADS ANO Pa3eIdwiol saRy oM

UOPUOT UL SIOTIDUNOY JO UOLBIBUNWDY U] Uo
jauey juspuadapuy syl woy podsy




Page 93

£19°9€F 03 ZREYLT rje30)
609°923 01 8I¥'¥13 ssajuemone 7 pueg
¥96'63 aduemolly Jiseq

smofjof so dn apour st sy

“Japeat 1ounod e 10} abeped uoijRIsUNILLBL BY] 4O
eies 0id 9,09-9,0% UBMIBG B1EdS BUIPHS B UO 3G PINOYS SIDUBMOT)E om] pueg jeyy asodoid o

UDIIRIBUINUDY

-dnosb uomisoddo jedpund jo sepesy

SSIULSNG 1OUNOD JO JeY)

Butuueyd 62 sannuwod Alojeinbad Jolew jo liey)

Apoq apisino Aex uo dajzRUSsBIdaYy

sajwwey Auunung e o aey) e sdewad ‘suswsbueie Aunis ui sequew peat

2t oM pung uyum Buteg aippduaiuos am aouffo Jo sedky sy

oMm] pueg

£92°813 03 161°213 fjejol
£2E8F 03 L22°¢F sB3ueMolly T pueg
Y9663 12IUBMOTlY Jlseg

:smopjof so dn apoui 8G PINoMm styf
Japea) Juno? e 104 abeyred LOLIRIBUNIBL BYY JO %NE-%0Z URBMIB] 4O
ajeds Buipys e uo 3q pinoys seduemoje Aljigisuodsal feads aug pueg jeyy asodosd o
UBTIEIRUITILSY

2doy sofew nbageis e jo diysiepes

JUBISISSY JBULQe)

SWIIO4 BalY 10 SHTIHUILIC) BRIV JO SIBYD BJIA PUR Siley)

$SULSNG JIUNOD JO ALBY) DA

diym dnotn uotpsoddq 3siLy

dnoig fucley jo {(Jusieamnbae o) Lieteies dnolg

dnosy uoisoddg 151y 10y uosipdsaiodg ennieg

dnosg uoiisodd J3]jBWS JO PUOIBS 4O Japed)

SRJUUOY-GNS JO 1B

sapHWWe) Aunnig 1o Kiojeinbay ‘831195 € 40 11ey)-81A
Bpnput auQ pung uyim Buginf abosiaus am spsod Yy
aup pueg

ualstutwipe o1 Asea pue ‘puelsiapun pue

uieldxa 03 Asea ‘jdepe 03 Asea ‘Ajdde 03 Ases Buieq Jo syuaw By} aary pINCYs s3LY 2AdNRG A
“SLOLTRPUBLIMOIB Jno 0] preBal aaey Jsnw Aoyl “suoijepusiwwodal o o3 piebat Buiaey spueq
JURIDYLP BYJ UIBMIBY SIOJILUNOD 1B} 23BI0YR 0 MOY 3PP 0 AJjEI0] SHIUNGI 343 10§ St 3T

HOLIBHSIP 807

BWBYDS ayy ug paydads

st AJALIOR JRUS JOU 10 13YIBYM DAOGR PRUOLIUBLI SAIALIIR By} Jo Buo Aue Ag wiy jo
painbas og pinom uey) 133ea1b 10 03 1Enbs Ji04s pue BUN] JO JUNOWR U JBGUIBW B3 JO
aunbat se suoauny S ALoYINE 3y Jo BIEYDSIP BYY 03 UOLEIAL L SALTIALOER 13410 YIRS

.

sapiuwod Aojemnbas so Buisuany e duysiaquiey

jpued uondope ue jo digsiaquiay

.

Auoyne ayy 4o
BIIUWWOI-GNS 10 BEFUWWOD © uo dnosb tesanoed e jo vosiadsayods se Bugoy «

spouad Buoy Aneuondadxe Joj o Aouanbay jeuordadxs
U3tm 323 YoM AJLIOUINE B4 JO 9BTWWOI-GNS 10 FRPUWWOD € 40 dysiaquay

Rpoq Jayio Aue ‘Agq pabueue 10 “jo sbuiesw je Auoyine sy Bunuasaiday «
sa1uue) Jof e yons jo
S91WW0I-GNS B 10 ‘SBLILIOYINE 12410 2I0W 10 U0 pue AJLIOINE BY3 JO S31IWW0D
jui0f © 10 “AjLI0UINe SY) JO IWOD-GNS 10 BVIWWOD € Jo sHuresw Je Bulpisald «
Ruoyine sy uyum dnosB yedanod e jo sapes) Andap 10 sapes) se Bugoy «
sjuswabueLe sandaxe Buneiado S1 AJLIOUINE SUY BISUM BALINDEXS BU) JO SIBQUIDY »
:puod aq Aptu s83UDMOND
Rgegisuodsas jopads yoiym of Aupqisuodsar Jo satioBayod Buwmorjof ayy Afads suonoinbal ay)
sazuemone woads o ssuelage
“A0)LUN0d B jo paadxs A)essush
asoy3 woly Ayigisuodsas 4o sjeas) pue sjuawainbar aw SY3 Ly SadUAIP Juedyiubis e ey

asaym suotyisod up Auo Aed ojut 2wod pinoys saduemoije je1dads SIIBYIS SBOURMOTE 18I0} Ut
In0 38s Apes)y 8q pnoys seduemope Ajiqisucdsal Jeads Jeuotyippe Jo juswhed loj suoseal ayy

seruRMoyie JeBds 10y s5e3 sy

aruemolly diseg ay) puolksg - saniqisuodsay jerdads

¥ OXTARIS4Y




Page 94

‘shem jussedsuen
pue 9]qIssa00e Ul utay} uo Apenbas odal 03 pue SUOLDE IBL/SIY 10§ SJGRIUNGIIE 3G Of «

‘Auoyine ayy Aq peaibe se sswweiboud Juswdoaasp pue Buiuiesy Aiessedsu »eLapUN Of o
RGBSl B St IOTUNOD 3 yoiym o dnoub jengpod Aue Jo seuapoe oyl ut aiedoued of e

‘pase 3 40 Juswwasob syl ur Ajessusb ayedpiyed 0 Atunwwoed oyl 03 Juewabeincous
3A139R yBnoly3 1emaual DRROOWSP pue JUBWLIA0E uddo 03 ABALIINLSUOD ANGLILOD ©) »

Auguspt pue Busg-Tem s Atunwwod ayl uodn j3edw YoM S10308) SaYI0 pue
SBAIIR ‘530pBs ‘suoiiesiueBio ay3 jo abpamouy Bubiiom e ueIuLel pue d01BASD Of e

RIUGUINE BY3 JO SIDLY0 JURABIDL IM
sduysuoieas Buppiom poob dojeasp 03 pue “SJuleRsUeY pue ‘sagnp/siamod ‘sjuswsbueue
Juawabeurw ‘sadpuss sA1poyIne ayy Jo abpapmouy Buppiom e ulejuew pue dojaAsp of «

‘3]GEILEAR SWIMIO) SNOLIBA BYY
ybnoiyy “Muoyine syl o1 Awnwwiod suy pue ALUNWILOD ayl 03 ALOYINE 4] JUISIdDL Of »

‘suoiesiuebio saU30 Ypm pue Alunuiuod ayy
LM $3559204d DALRIINSLOD PASEG-BILAIES pUR - BAJR By} Ul ‘pajutodde se ‘ejedidiped of o

‘Ajoyine ay3 jo saaLpalqo o1683s Ayl BuiAelyde Ut SSAUBALDSYR
112y} pue “396pnq pue saged jo AUaNOS au3 ‘sapaep oS Auoyine ayy a1dym Buipniout
Ajpoyine sy jo SBDLAIBS RYY JO MRl edueuropRd 1o Augnis syl ut eedpiped of e

'SUDHBUNY pur ajol s Apog
3eY3 Jo adsal Ul suoyjeidse pue spIau s AUNuWod ay) jo pue Apog jey) o) uone)al
ut saompedd pue sspyod sAuoyine ayy jo abpajmowy Bubyiom B uiejuiew pue dojpasp

o3 “ssodind ayj 105 ‘os]y “suouesiuebio sy} usamlaq uoledLNWIWOD Aem-om) Buipiroid
‘pajuiodde St I0N0URTY By Yorum 03 Apog BPISING bR 4o sariaLde Byl ut jedpiied of @

Buppom diyssauied

pue Bupuelsiapun 1o133q ajowosd 03 saipog dignd B0 yim uosieq pue ‘sabieyd

pue sadj ‘sjusuguiodde jjels ‘Sanssy 92iN05al LRWNY ‘9DUaIAJRI JO SWidY (5 jauey 10)
SPTHWWOY DYY uyIm Buijey sediales ayy 1oj sentjigisuodsal pajejal Buipnput ‘pajuiodde
SLAOTIIDUNOD UYL YILUYM O JBUBJ 10 VTWOD AuB Jo J9qudw e se Aaardaye ajedwnued of

(ABa3esis *seiuond jesene “3ebpng

Buinag '6-3) 1OUNOY 1IN} BYD 03 PaAIISSE SALIALIDE PUR SUOISLSP asoyy ut uopediiued pue

‘PNPUOd JO $BPOD JueARL 1B Ym 3duendiued Bulpnput y1est Ajuoyine ayy pue Auoyine
1820] ¥ 4O JDQWIBW PBJIRJd UE JO Sjuswalnbal pauiwIslap 1820] pue A0INIeYS DYl YN Of »

isysey fay
“uoIR0sSe pooyinoqybiau
10 35013 B)qeiueyd @ se yons ‘Apoq SPISIN0 Ue LD 1DUNOD YY) JudsIdal 0] »

ustilonAue pue Auouoda Aunbe Jo suey w
Aunwiwod sy 4o 344 4o Agenb ayz jo Juswancidui syl oy ubiedwed pue Ajunwuwod
3443 30 AH}LqRULRISNS PUB SIS2UJUL BY] 0] 21€)81 153 YDIYM SOSNED By} uoldweyd of e

‘suopeasadss pue sauUNbUY STUSNILISUOD Y Je8p pue
’PBIIIR SEM JOJI2UN0D YT UDLYM 104 PIBM YT JO SISRLIUL aYY KjaARDRYS Juasaidel 0f «

‘RisaLep @2iaues pue saibaiens
“38Bpng 'satyod s Auoyine sy jo AuynRIds pue woljRuLI) 34} 0F AJSALIDR B3NGLIL0D Of «

‘231 3y} 4o sourwieanh poob syy ur Apaianiisuod stediogied of »
ssusoding

s101112un0d 104 9yyoid gof & ~ Ajunwiiod ay) jo jjeysq ug

*Y61°9LF 1k 198
Kieyes e aq pjnoys 3t 3ey3 pue Japea 110UN0) € 10} PIPUBWII0DBI Jey} ueyl Jaybly 94,67 Jo
abexyded uoljriBunwal e AL pinoys sohel pagda)g Adailg daty pueg e eyl esodoid ag

‘1oA8) Meles ayy ug

pa1IBaL 3¢ pnoys yatym souepodul ue yum gol awy vy © st 3t 1Y} pue Japow JoULqe) Yim
13ped 1OUN0] U3 4o ey} 03 wasayip Ajuesylubls st 1sod siyl sasyaq e "ok TRIOPS}R

paxy e JaAo sanjlqisuodsal 2ALNDAXe Buisioexs pue 2101 Mau © Lo Bulye] Japjoy 20440 A3 YIM
JuawuaA0b Jed0] Jo Juswabeurw jedyod 9yl ui uogeAvuUL Jofew © St sofey pa3dely Apdang v

sofiey pagoeyy Apoag

3AL] pueg

SS1°193 1eyol
161153 1a3uemolly v pueg
Y¥96'63 i3uemolly diseg

ssmapjaf so dn apouwi st siyg

6617197 34 pinoys
3WBYIS INO JO N0 pueg JBPUN JapeaT JOUND) B 10} abeyded uopeeunwal ay) Jeyy asodosd sy

PRGNS SL W Yousmideg e ydiym 01
abexped sasuadxa snosauab auy (op am se) Buipnidxa UBAS ‘a3l JaMO] B Je PajRIsUNLal 8g pjned
Aouy 3ey) 199dx0 03 BuOIM 33ND 3G PINOM 1 puR ‘diy UR JO BSO] S SNOLAUO S 35B3) 3B o JSnl
ybnoiog LopUOT B 40 19PRST BWI-IINY B JO SUOLIDUNY 34 ‘di UDUSEIDRY B JO JRYT ‘M3IA ANO Ul ‘St
ainseaiw sjepdosdde 3sow ayy 91485 dGnd Jo se3oRiRYd AiRUNIOA B3 JO UOLDAYSI B Buluielal

1138 3s)ym 103328 3uand ay3 ut suoiysod Jejuns yim sa1ediuod YoM SISeq B U0 PRIRIBUNWAL
g pinoys 3t ey 1ybu st 11 Aigisuodsar jo 1342) ybiy e butnjoaut ‘gol swn-Tiny e st sy
JBULGRY JO JOpRaT]

ino4 pueg
$92°893 0} 699°2y3 neyoL
1088€F 03 S0L'2€3 PUBMOYY € pueg

$96'6F:0uLMOlY Jiseg
ssmojjof sp dn apou st St}

uapes) 11aunod e 104 abeoed uogeiounwas ayy 4o
2304 0id 9%08-%0/ UIIMIBG B PINOYS $3UBMOY|R 31y pueg Jey; asodoxd apm

SOLRIBUNESY

WIUNO) 2y3 4o 1epeat Andag

9910 AULINIDS 10 MILAIBAD ULRW By} JO JtRY)
1aquay jeuiqe)

ssps0d Bumoyjof 2y 01 aipudaddn so pung styy 285 3y
2944} pueg




Page 95

LONDON
COUNCILS )

www.londoncouncils.gov.uk
59%, Southwark Street, London SE1 OAL



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 97

APPENDIX 3

[the words proposed for addition and insertion are shown in italics and
underlined at Article 6.02 (u) on page 3]

[N. B. The same amendment will be required for the same list of full Council
functions in Part E.7 section 1]

Part E.1
The Full Council Article

Article 6 - The Full Council

6.01. Meanings

(a)

(c)

Policy Framework. A complete list of all the plans and strategies
compirising the Council’s Policy Framework is set out in the
appropriate Schedule in Part F, Decision Making. These are the
plans and strategies that Haringey Council has decided should
be reserved to the full Council for approval:

Budget. The budget includes the allocation of financial
resources to different services and projects, proposed
contfingency funds, setting the council tax and decisions relating
to the conftrol of the Council's borrowing requirements, the
conftrol of its capital expenditure and the setting of virement
limits. The determination of the Council Tax Base is delegated to
the Director of Finance in consultation with the Executive
Member for Finance and the Executive Advisory Board.

Housing Land Transfer. Housing Land Transfer means the
approval or adoption of applications (whether in draft form or
not) to the Secretary of State for approval of a programme of
disposal of 500 or more properties to a person under the
Leasehold Reform, Housing and Urban Development Act 1993 or
to dispose of land used for residential purposes where approval is
required under sections 32 or 43 of the Housing Act 1985.

6.02. Functions of the full Council

Only the Council will exercise the following functions:

(a)  Adopting and changing the Constitution;



(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(m)

Page 98

Approving or adopting the policy framework as set out in
the appropriate schedule in Part F;

Approving the budget, levying Council Tax and setting the
non-domestic rate multiplier;

Determining the borrowing limits for the authority for each
financial year and the proportions of borrowing that are to
be set at variable rates;

Approving any application to the Secretary of State in
respect of any Housing Land Transfer as set out in Article
6.01 (c) above;

Subject to the urgency procedure contained in the
Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part D of this
Constitution, making decisions about any matter in the
discharge of an Executive function which is covered by
the policy framework or the budget where the decision
maker is minded to make it in a manner which would be
conftrary to the policy framework or contrary to/or not
wholly in accordance with the budget;

Appointing the Leader and Members of the Executive;

Agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for
committees, deciding on their composition and making
appointments to them and delegating functions to them
from time to tfime as may be appropriate;

Agreeing recommendations arising from Scrutiny Reviews
of non-executive functions;

Deciding on recommendations arising from Scrutiny
Reviews not accepted by the Executive and referred by
the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee;

Agreeing and/or amending the Scheme of Delegations to
Officers;

Appointing representatives to outside bodies unless the
appointment is an Executive function or has been
delegated by the Council;

Adopting and amending an allowances scheme under
Article 4.05;



Page 99

(n)  Changing the name of the area, conferring the title of
honorary alderman or freedom of the borough and
establishing any new Civic Link;

(o) Confirming the appointment or dismissal of the head of
paid service;

(p)  Making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting
bylaws and promoting or opposing the making of local
legislation or personal Bills including the adoption of any
legislation where the Council has a discretion;

() Alllocal choice functions set out in Part F of this
Constitution which the Council decides should be
undertaken by itself rather than the Executive, or any
Committee, Sub-Committee or officer;

(r) Entering info, or confirming existing, joint arrangements
with other local authorities

(s) Adopting the Members’ Code of Conduct;
(1) Approving Pilot Schemes for Local Elections;

(u)  Resolving not to issue any casino premises licences in the
next three years;

(v)  Adopting Standing Orders for the Council and Standing
Orders as to Contracts;

(w)  Making any decisions in respect of non-Executive functions
which have not been expressly delegated elsewhere;

(X) All matters that must be reserved to Council under the
Finance Procedure Rules; and

(y) All other matters that, by law, must be reserved to Council.

6.03. Council meetings
There are three types of Council meetings:
(a)  The annual meeting;

(b)  Ordinary meetings;
(c) Extraordinary meetings.



Page 100

They will be conducted in accordance with the Standing Orders
(Council Procedure Rules) in Part E of this Constitution.

Council meetings will be chaired by the Mayor if he/she is present. If
the Mayor is not present, Council will select another Councillor to take
the Chair. The Deputy Mayor does not automatically chair the meeting
in the Mayor's absence. The Council may select the Deputy Mayor if it
SO wishes.

6.04. Responsibility for functions
The Council will maintain the tables in Part E of this Constitution setting

out the responsibilities for the Council's functions that are not the
responsibility of the Executive.



Page 101

APPENDIX 4

[the words proposed for addition or insertion are shown in italics and
underlined and the words proposed for deletion are shown struck
through]

PART E.7 of the Council’s Constitution

SECTION 2 - COMMITTEES

[this extract starts at page 7 of Part E.7 in the version of the Constitution
last updated in May 2004]

(1)

Licensing Committee

The Licensing Committee has all the functions referred to it by
low under the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005.
These include:

(a)

(o)

To be responsible for monitoring the operation of the Acts,
and licensable activities and gambling in the Borough;

To receive reports on these matters and on the functions
delegated to the Licensing Sub-Committees and to
officers. To call for a report on any individual case;

To be consulted on the review and determination of the
Licensing Policy Statement and the Statement of
Gambling Policy including procedures for Council
consultation with external stakeholders;

To determine the procedures to be followed in handling
applications, notices, representations and all hearings,
subject to the relevant Regulations;

Subject to Requlations, to determine the fees payable for
applications for premises licences and related matters
under the Gambling Act 2005;

To exercise the functions of the Licensing Sub-Committees
in relation to any premises, site or event where 500 or more
persons are to be present;

To exercise the functions of the Licensing Sub-Committees
in any case referred to the Committee by its Chair, or by



Page 102

the Chair of a Licensing Sub-Committee on the grounds of
its special significance or difficulty;

In a Council Election Year when there is a heed to hold a
hearing in the period between Election day and the
Annual Meeting of the Council, those Members of the
Licensing Committee who are re-elected as Councillors
shall meet as the Licensing Committee to exercise any of
the functions of the Licensing Sub-Committees, or under
(e) above, and shall elect a Chair for the meeting.

Excluded from the Licensing Committee’s terms of reference are:

(a)

The functions statutorily referred to the General Purposes
Committee, The Executive and the full Council including
the formal review and determination of the Licensing

Policy Statement and the Statement of Gambling Policy;

The functions delegated to the Licensing Sub-Committees,
as set out below, except where referred back to the
Committee under sub-paragraph 6(1)(f) above.



Page 103

APPENDIX 5

[the words proposed for addition or insertion are shown in italics and
underlined and the words proposed for deletion are shown struck
through]

[the words in bold text which refer to the dates when specific functions
come into effect, or are repealed under the Gambling Act 2005, are

intended for explanation and direction and not as a part of the
permanent text of the Constitution]

PART E.7 of the Council’s Constitution
SECTION 3 - SUB-COMMITTEES AND PANELS

[this extract starts at page 14 of Part E.7 in the version of the
Constitution last updated in May 2006]

3. Under Licensing Committee

3.01. Llicensing Sub-Commitiee

General Provisions

(a) To exercise all the functions listed in svb-paragraphs{cito

{ebelow these terms of reference in relation to any
premises, site or event where less than 500 persons are to
be present;

(b) The Chair of a Licensing Sub-Committee may, before
hearing it, refer any case falling within {a}-above these
terms of reference to the Licensing Committee on the
grounds of its special significance or difficulty. This power
may also be exercised by the Chair of the Licensing
Committee;

(c) Licensing Sub-Committees have the power to make final
decisions on behalf of the Council on matters within their
terms of reference and there is no right of appeal to the
Licensing Committee.



Page 104

Functions under both the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act

2005

(d)

(e)

To determine applications for premises licences where
relevant representations have been made;

To determine applications for provisional statements where
relevant representations have been made;

To determine applications for variations of premises
licences where relevant representations have been made;

To determine valid applications for review of premises
licences;

To decide on any other matter withinthe licensing
funclionsunder the-Licensing-Act 2003 where it is

necessary or desirable for Members to make that decision;

Functions under the Licensing Act 2003 alone

(1)

(1)

(n)

(o)

To determine applications to vary designated premises
supervisors following police objections;

To determine applications for transfer of premises licences
following police objections;

To consider police objections made to interim authority
notices;

To determine applications for club premises certificates
where relevant representations have been made;

To determine applications to vary club premises
cerfificates where relevant representations have been
made;

To determine valid applications for review of club premises
certificates;

To decide whether to give counter notices following police
objections to temporary event nofices;

To determine applications for grants of personal licences
following police objections;



(r)

Page 105

To determine applications for renewals of personal
licences following police objections;

To decide on revocation of personal licences where
convictions come to light after grant;

Functions under the Gambling Act 2005 alone

(s)

(1)

(u)

(v)

(W)

(%)

(y)

(2)

(aa)

To determine applications for transfer of premises licences
following representations by the Gambling Commission or
others;

To determine applications for the reinstatement of
premises licences where relevant representations have
been made;

To decide whether to give counter notices following
objections to temporary use notices;

To determine applications for the grant of club gaming
permits and club machine permits where objections have
been received;

To determine proposals to cancel club gaming permits
and club machine permits where the holder requests a

hearing;

When the licence holder requests a hearing, to determine
officer proposals: (i) to make an order removing the
entitlement of an on-premises alcohol licence holder to
have one or two gaming machines, or (ii) to cancel or vary
a licensed premises gaming machine permit;

To determine licensed premises gaming machine permit
applications for 5 or more machines and all applications
for any number of machines where there is cause for
concern about the proper management of the premises;

Fo-cetermine apphicaiions o SSIII|I|5|€ ol esle iy l'ls A

Lt  the L e " .
20035; [this sub-paragraph to be deleted on repeal with

effect from 1st June 2007]

ro-aeierm II' ° e]eée ﬁglell |e| slle okl |I|s|e gemes el oHenes




(ob)

Page 106

1974; [this sub-paragraph to be deleted on repeal with
effect from 1st September 2007]

Tod . L F o
undersection-é-ofthe Gaming-Act1968; [this sub-
paragraph to be deleted on repeal with effect from 1st
September 2007]



Page 107

APPENDIX 6

[The words proposed for addition and insertion are shown in italics and

underlined]

PART F.7 of the Council’s Constitution — Scheme of Delegation to

Officers

Section 4 — Delegated Powers of the Director of Urban Environment

[the text shown below would be added to the end of the schedule of statutory
delegations starting at page 110 of Part F.7 in the version of the Constitution
last updated in May 2006]

Gambling Act 2005 | The delegations below do not include the
functions of the Licensing Sub-Committees
Sections 29, 30, 350 Duties and powers to provide information AD-Enf
and Schedule 6 required or requested by the Gambling
Parts 1 & 4 Commission or other bodies
Sections 33, 37, 41, Power to prosecute and enforce against AD-Enf
42, 43 and 44 offences including unlawful use of premises
for gambling activities
Section 156 Duty to make publicly available the AD-Enf
reqister of premises licences and to
provide copies on payment of prescribed
fees
Section 161 Power to make representations on AD-Enf
applications for premises licences
Sections 163 to 165 Powers to grant or reject applications AD-Enf
and 167 to 169 where valid representations have not been
made, to give relevant notices and to
impose or exclude conditions
Section 185 Power to prosecute for failure to keep AD-Enf
licence on premises or make it available
on request
Sections 186 to 190 Power to alter or provide copies of AD-Enf
premises licence on application and to
enforce provisions. Power to vary or
fransfer a premises licence where valid
representations have not been made and
to impose or exclude conditions
Sections 192 to 196 Power to notify surrenders, revoke premises | AD-Enf

licence on non-payment of fees and to




Page 108

reinstate licence

Section 197 to 200

Power to grant an application for review of

AD-Enf

a premises licence or to reject an
application under s.198(1), to initiate any
review and to make all arrangements
connected with the hearing of a review by
Members

Sections 206 to 209

Power to conduct appeals

AD-Enf

Sections 218, 220,
222, 225, 226, 227,
228 and 234

Power to give counter-notice in response

AD-Enf

to a temporary use notice, to
acknowledge temporary use notice, to
agree with other parties in the event of
objection that a hearing is unnecessary, to
dismiss objections, to conduct appeals
and to endorse, return and provide copies
of temporary use notices and to maintain
and make available the register

Section 242

Power to prosecute for making a gaming

machine available for use in contravention
of an operating schedule or Requlations

Section 247 and
Schedule 10

Power to grant or reject applications for
the grant or renewal of permits for family
entertainment gaming machines including
consideration of representations, making
notifications, replacing permits, the
conduct of appeals, maintaining and
making available the register, providing
copies on payment of fees and
enforcement of all provisions

Section 258 to 261
and Schedule 11

Power to prosecute and enforce in cases

AD-Enf

of unlawfully promoting or facilitating a
lottery and misusing profits of lotteries and
exempt lotteries

Section 262 and
Schedule 11 Parts 4

Power to reqgister or refuse reqistration of
small society and nhon-commercial society

&S

lotteries in accordance with the provisions
including cancellations, provision of
copies, the conduct of appeals,
maintaining and making available records
and enforcing all provisions

Section 274 and
Schedule 12

Power to grant or refuse applications for
the grant or renewal of club gaming
permits or club machine permits in
accordance with the provisions including
grant by “fast track procedure”, variation,
cancellation, and surrender _of permits, the
conduct of appeals, maintaining and




Page 109

making available the reqister, providing
copies on payment of fees and
enforcement of all provisions

Section 283 and
Schedule 13

Power to grant, refuse or modify
applications for licensed premises gaming
machine permits in accordance with the
provisions including the variation, transfer
or cancellation of permits, the conduct of
appeals, maintaining and making
available the register, providing copies on
payment of fees and enforcement of all
provisions

Section 284

Power to make orders for specific premises
removing the right to provide exempt
gaming under section 279 or the right to
make up to two gaming machines
available for use under section 282 in
accordance with the requirements for
notifications, considering representations
and the conduct of appeals

Section 289 and
Schedule 14

Power to grant or refuse applications for
prize gaming permits in accordance with
the provisions including amendment and
renewal of permits, the conduct of
appeals, maintaining and making
available the register, providing copies on
payment of fees and enforcement of all
provisions. Power to prepare a draft
statement of principles in relation to prize
gaming permits for approval by Members

Section 304

Power to designate officers as authorised

AD-Enf

persons for the purposes of the Act

delegatio
nto AD

only

Section 305

Power to undertake activities to assess
compliance with the Act or detect
offences

AD-Enf

Section 307, 309,
310,311,312, 313,

Power to enter premises in connection with

AD-Enf

facilities for gambling, gaming machines at

314, 315, 317, 318,
319, 322 and 326

family entertainment centres, premises
licensed for alcohol, prize gaming permits,
clubs, licensed premises, lotteries,
temporary use notices, and to exercise all
functions under these provisions including
application for warrants and enforcement
against obstruction

Section 342

Power to prosecute in relation to persons

AD-Enf




Page 110

qiving false or misleading information

Section 346 Power to prosecute for any offence AD-Enf
referred to in this section
Section 349 Power to prepare and consult upon a draft | AD-Enf

statement of principles and any review or
revision of such statement subject to
Members’ approval of the final statement
or revision




Page 111

APPENDIX 7

[the words proposed for addition or insertion are shown in italics and
underlined and the words proposed for deletion are struck through]

PART C.9 of the Council’s Constitution

HARINGEY COUNCIL — LOCAL LICENSING PROCEDURE RULES FOR

HEARINGS UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003 AND THE GAMBLING

ACT 2005

Interpretation

l.

“Acts” means the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005

“Applicant” means a natural person or other legal entity making
any application or initiating any procedure or giving any notice
for any form of licence, certificate, consent or determination in
accordance with the Acts

“Application” means any type of application, procedure or
notice for any form of licence, certificate, consent or
determination for which provision is made under the Acts

“Chair” means the Chair of the Licensing Committee or Licensing
Sub-Committee determining the relevant application

“Committee clerk” means the officer(s) instructed by the Head
of Members'Servces Local Democracy to attend Licensing Sub-
Committee meetings to take the minutes and assist with the
proper running of the meetings

“Council” means the Council of the London Borough of Haringey

"Gambling hearing” means a hearing by a Sub-Committee to
determine an application under the Gambling Act 2005

"Hearing” means a Gambling hearing or a Licensing Hearing as
appropriate to the application

“Hearings Regulations” means The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings)
Regulations 2005 (S.I. 2005 no. 44) in relation to licensing hearings
and The Gambling Act (Proceedings of Licensing Committees




Page 112

and Sub-Committees) (England and Wales) Requlations 2007 in
relation to gambling hearings.

“Interested party” has the meaning prescribed in the Acts

“Legal representative” means the officer(s) instructed by the
Head of Legal Services to attend Licensing Sub-Committee
meetings to advise on matters of law and procedure

“Licensing hearing” means a hearing by a Sub-Committee to
determine an application under the Licensing Act 2003

“Licensing Committee” means the Council’s statutory
Committee under the Acfts

“Licensing representative” means the officer(s) instructed by the
Assistant Director, Enforcement to administer application
procedures and to afttend Licensing Sub-Committee meetings to
adyvise on licensing matters and gambling matters

“Licensing Service” means the Service under the Assistant
Director, Enforcement responsible for administering the Council’s
functions under the Acts

“Member” means Haringey Councillor appointed to serve as a
Member of the Licensing Committee or a Licensing Sub-
Committee as the context requires

“Notice"” means any notice made in accordance with the Acts,
or Regulations made thereunder, in relation to an application

“Objector” means each interested party, responsible authority,
other natural person or legal entity who/which has made a
relevant representations or an objection or given any notice in
relation to any application

“Party/Parties” means the applicant(s) and/or the objector(s) in
relation to any particular application

“Premises” means any premises, of land, vessel, vehicle or
moveable structure in respect of which an application is made

“Relevant Representation” means any relevant representation
made in accordance with the Acts, or Regulations made
thereunder, in relation to an application

“Responsible authority” has the meaning prescribed in the Acts



Page 113

“Sub-Committee” means a Licensing Sub-Committee to which
the Licensing Committee of the Council has delegated powers
to determine applications. Unless the context otherwise requires,
this shall be interpreted to include the Council’s Licensing
Committee when that Committee is hearing an_ application
within its terms of reference.

“Ward Councillor” means a Haringey Councillor representing a
Ward within which are located any premises that are the subject
of an application.

Scope and Application

2.

These Rules apply to all applications and hearings made in
accordance with the Acts, or Regulations made thereunder.
These Rules should be read and interpreted in conjunction the
Hearings Regulations and the Acts.

Council/Committee Standing Orders do not apply to hearings
except the Standing Order on Attendance/Substitute Members.

Pre-Hearing Procedure

4.

The Licensing Service will notify the relevant Ward Councillors of
each application, notice or relevant representation relating to
premises within their Ward within 2 working days of receiving such
application, notice or relevant representation. This requirement is
in addition to any requirement arising under the Hearings
Regulations.

The Licensing Service may seek to mediate between the parties
to an application with a view to securing: -

(a)the withdrawal of any relevant representation or notice,
or

(b) the agreement of the parties that a hearing is

unnecessary.

If, in any case, the parties agree that a hearing is unnecessary,
the Licensing representative, in consultation with the Chair, shall
decide whether the Council consider that a hearing is
unnecessary to determine the application and shall give notice
of that decision to the parties forthwith.

In any case where it has been decided that a hearing is
unnecessary, the Sub-Committee shall consider the application
at an ordinary meeting. In reaching its decision, the Sub-



Page 114

Committee shall take into account the form of application and
accompanying documents, any written relevant representations
and nofices that have not been withdrawn and any report or
other documents that appear to be relevant.

Membership and Quorum for Hearings

8.

10.

1.

Where an application relates to premises within a Ward, then a
Ward Councillor shall not take part in the decision upon that
application as a Member.

So far as practicable, hearings will be arranged so that the Sub-
Committee determining the application does not include
Members representing any Ward in which premises affected by
the application are located

The quorum for any hearing of a Sub-Committee shall be three
Members and the quorum for any hearing by the Licensing
Committee shall be four Members.

Any Member arriving after the commencement of a hearing, or
leaving during the course of a hearing, shall take no part, or no
further part, in the conduct of that hearing or the decision on the
application in question.

Councillors’ Participation in Hearings

12.

13.

A Councillor, who is not a Member of the Sub-Committee
determining the application in question, may participate in the
hearing but only if the Councillor is an objector who has made
relevant representations in accordance with the Hearings
Regulations and the Acts, or if the Councillor has been asked to
aftend by a party in order to act as a witness or a representative
for that party.

A Councillor, who is a Member of the Sub-Committee
determining the application in question, will have a prejudicial
interest in that application if the he/she makes a relevant
representation by way of objection to it and may well have a
prejudicial interest if he/she has otherwise been involved in
supporting or opposing the application. Any Member of a Sub-
Committee who has a prejudicial interest for these or other
reasons must not participate in the decision upon the
application and must not be present at the hearing in any
capacity or at all.



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 115

Any Member of a Sub-Committee who has made a relevant
representation by way of objection to an application on behalf
of his/her constituents and who cannot attend the hearing
personally by reason of Rule 13, should arrange to be
represented by an agent or a fellow Ward Councillor who is not
a Member of the Sub-Committee.

A Councillor will have a personal interest in an application if it
might reasonably be regarded as affecting that Councillor (or
his/her spouse/partner, relatives, friends, employer or business) to
a greater extent than other residents in the area. A Councillor
with a personal interest shall not participate in decision-making
on the application in question as a Member of the relevant Sub-
Committee. This is in order to avoid any possible allegation of
bias.

Whenever a Councillor, who is not a Member of the Sub-
Committee, intends to participate in a hearing in accordance
with Rule 12, the Councillor must consider whether he/she has a
personal or a prejudicial interest before the hearing. A
Councillor with a personal interest, who is not a Member of the
Sub-Committee determining the application, may participate in
a hearing in accordance with Rule 12 but must disclose such an
interest first. A Councillor with a prejudicial interest, who is not a
Member of the Sub-Committee determining the application,
must not be present at the hearing in any capacity or at all.
Members must be aware that their Code of Conduct applies to
all Councillors at all times in whatever capacity they attend a
hearing.

Where a Member of a Sub-Committee has had any form of
personal or business involvement with a party to an application,
which is to be determined by the Sub-Committee, or with any
person connected to a party, then the Member must consider
whether such involvement could amount to a personal or a
prejudicial interest or whether such an interest could exist for any
other reason. If there is any doubt on this matter, the Member
must seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer or the legall
representative.

A Councillor who has participated in a decision by the Council
to make any application, or to support or assist an application
made by another person, shall not participate in decision-
making on the application in question as a Member of the
relevant Sub-Committee.



Page 116

Lobbying of Members and Expressions of Opinion by Members

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

If a Member of a Sub-Committee is approached by a party or a
lobbyist for or against an application to be determined by that
Sub-Committee, then the Member must: -

(a)  explain that he/she cannot discuss the matter, and

(b)  refer the lobbyist to another Councillor who is not a
Member of the Sub-Committee or to the Licensing Service
who can give further information on the process of dealing
with the application, and

(c) keep an adequate written record of the approach, and

(d)  disclose the fact of the approach before the hearing in
accordance with Rule 51(c).

If a Member of a Sub-Committee receives any written
representation either supporting or opposing an application to
be determined by that Sub-Committee, then the Member shalll
pass the representation to the Licensing Service for appropriate
action.

A Member of a Sub-Committee must avoid expressing any
personal opinion about the merits of an application to be
determined by that Sub-Committee and must not take any
action that would bring into question the Member's capacity to
consider the application objectively.

A Member of a Sub-Committee must not accept any gift, favour
or free hospitality that could be seen as connected to any
application to be determined by that Sub-Committee.

Members of Sub-Committees are not to be influenced by party
political factors or pressures when determining any application.

Non-Attendance at Hearings

24.

25.

Where a party has not notified the Council that he/she does not
intend to attend or to be represented at a hearing, and that
party fails to attend the hearing then the Sub-Committee may
either: -

(a) adjourn the hearing to a specified date where it considers
this to be necessary in the public interest, or
(b)  hold the hearing in the party’s absence.

Normally, a party who fails to attend a hearing in the
circumstances described in Rule 24 above, will be allowed one



26.

Page 117

further opportunity to attend the hearing adjourned to a
specified date.

Where an adjournment is granted, the Licensing representative
shall make every reasonable endeavour to contact the party
who failed to attend by telephone or in person in order to warn
them of the new date for the adjourned hearing and the
likelihood that the application will be determined in that party’s
absence in the event of further failure to attend.

Calling Witnesses

27.

28.

29.

Where a party wishes to call a witness to give evidence at a
hearing that party must give written noftice to the Licensing
Service of this intention no later than ten working days before the
date of the hearing stating: -

(a)  the name of the witness, and

(b)  a brief description of the point or points upon which the
witness’ evidence may assist the Sub-Committee in making
its decision on the application

Where a party has given notice under Rule 27, the Licensing
Service shall forthwith communicate this notice to the other
party/parties, if possible by electronic means or by the most
rapid practicable alternative means.

Where a party has given notice under Rule 27, the Sub-
Committee shall consider at the commencement of the hearing
whether it will permit the party to call the witness for the
purpose(s) nofified. Such permission shall not be refused at a
gambling hearing and shall not be unreasonably withheld at a
licensing hearing or at any hearing where there has not been full
compliance with Rule 27.

Documentary Evidence

30.

Where a party wishes to rely upon documentary evidence at a
hearing that party must give written notice to the Licensing
Service of this intention no later than ten working days before the
date of the hearing. This notice shall be accompanied by six
copies for the Council and sufficient additional copies of all the
relevant documentary evidence for each other party made
known to the notifying party. Compliance with this Rule is
especially important in relation to documents that are not easy
to photocopy because, for example, they are coloured or not
A4 size.



31.

32.

33.

Page 118

Where a party has given notice under Rule 30, the Licensing
Service shall forthwith communicate all the relevant
documentary evidence to the other party/parties if possible by
electronic means or by the most rapid practicable alternative
means.

Where a party has complied fully with Rule 30, that party shall
have the right to have the relevant documentary evidence
admitted and, subject to the provisions of the Hearings
Regulations, the Sub-Committee shall take such evidence into
account in making its decision.

In any case where a party wishes to rely upon documentary
evidence but has not fully complied with Rule 30, then at the
commencement of the hearing the Sub-Committee shall follow
this procedure subject to sub-paragraph (h) of this Rule: -

(a)  the Chair shall establish whether the other party/parties
consent to the documentary evidence being admitted,
and

(b) if all the other parties so consent, then the documentary
evidence shall be treated as if Rule 32 applied to it, or

(c) if any party does not so consent, then the Sub-Committee
shall decide whether to admit the documentary evidence
nonetheless

(d)  in making its decision under Rule 33(c), the Sub-Committee
shall have regard to any reasons given for the late
production of the documentary evidence, or other non-
compliance with Rule 30.

(e) in making its decision under Rule 33(c), the Sub-Committee
shall consider how far any other party may be prejudiced
by the late production of the documentary evidence, or
other non-compliance with Rule 30, and also the extent of
the prejudice to the party seeking to rely upon the
evidence if its admission is refused.

(f) in making its decision under Rule 33(c), the Sub-Committee
shall consider whether it would be desirable in the public
interest to adjourn the hearing for any period of time, or to
another date, in order to allow any other party a
reasonable opportunity to consider the documentary
evidence.

(g) in making its decisions under Rules 33(c) and 33(f) above,
the Sub-Committee shall consider any representations by
the parties and the advice of its legal representative.

(h)  at a gambling hearing where a party has not complied
with Rule 30 and has only produced its documentary




34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Page 119

evidence at the hearing, then such evidence shall only be
admitted with the consent of all the other parties
attending or represented at the hearing.

Where a party wishes to rely upon documentary evidence at a
hearing but considers that any details of that evidence should
be treated as confidential, for example the name or address of
the signatory of a letter, then the party may exclude such
confidential details from any documentary evidence sent to the
Licensing Service under Rule 30. This Rule does not apply to any
notice given or relevant representation made, since the
originator must state his/her name and address in order for it to
be valid.

In any case where confidential details are excluded under Rule
34, the Licensing Service must be informed that a request will be
made by the party under Rule 42. If permission is refused under
Rule 43, the whole or part of the relevant documentary evidence
may be excluded from consideration. If permission is granted to
exclude any confidential details, this may affect the weight to be
given to the rest of the related evidence under Rule 58.

Where a party wishes to rely upon a model, or any form of
evidence that cannot be photocopied, at a hearing that party
must give written notice to the Licensing Service of this intention
no later than ten working days before the date of the hearing.
The party seeking to rely upon such evidence shall indicate in the
notice, so far as practicable, the nature of that evidence and
the purpose(s) of producing it.

Where a party has given notice under Rule 36, the Licensing
Service shall forthwith communicate all relevant information
about the evidence to the other party/parties if possible by
electronic means or the most rapid practicable alternative

means.

Rules 30 to 33 shall be applied flexibly to evidence of the type
described in Rule 36 with a presumption that such evidence wiill
be admitted if it materially helps the Sub-Committee to
understand relevant issues between the parties at the hearing.

Petitions

39.

Petitions shall on each page state their purpose and contain a
warning to potential signatories that they are liable to be made
public and that a copy will be supplied to other parties to the
application. Each person signing should print their name and



40.

Page 120

address legibly. At the end a petition must state the name(s) and
address(es) of the persons circulating the petition and the dates
on which this took place.

A petition must comply with Rule 39 unless the Sub-Committee
decide to waive compliance with any requirement(s) for a good
reason. A petition shall also be treated as documentary
evidence and Rules 30 to 33 shall apply.

Private Hearings and Confidential Evidence

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

In accordance with the Hearings Regulations, hearings shall take
place in public unless a decision to the contrary is made under
Rule 43 in any case.

Where a party or a witness consider that any giving of evidence,
or part of any evidence, or part of a hearing, should be held in
private, then the party or their witness shall make such request to
the Chair at the commencement of the hearing.

The Sub-Committee may decide to exclude members of the
public from any part of a hearing and/or tfreat any evidence as
confidential where the Sub-Committee consider that the public
interest in preserving the confidentiality of any evidence
outweighs the public interest in that part of the hearing taking
place in public.

For the purposes of Rule 43, a party, a witness and any person
assisting or representing a party, may be excluded from any part
of a hearing or from hearing or seeing any particular evidence.
Where the Sub-Committee decide to hold part of a hearing in
private, a party and/or his/her representative shall not be
excluded except for very special reasons.

Where the Sub-Committee decide to hold part of a hearing in
private, the officers of the Licensing Service will not be excluded
except for very special reasons. The Committee Clerk and legal
representative shall not be excluded.

Before making any decision under Rules 43 or 45, the Sub-
Committee shall consider the advice of its legal representative.

Where any part of a hearing takes place in private, the hearing
will be adjourned immediately thereafter for a period of time
sufficient to enable the Committee clerk to prepare a fair
summary of the evidence and proceedings heard in private. This
summary will exclude all details that the Sub-Committee, acting

10



48.

49.

50.

Page 121

with the advice of its legal representative, consider should
remain confidential. Upon the resumption of the hearing, the
summary will be read out publicly in the presence of all the
parties.

Rules 41 to 47 shall apply as nearly as may be practicable to
documentary evidence where, with the consent of the Sub-
Committee, confidential details may be disclosed to the Sub-
Committee but excluded from disclosure to the public or persons
mentioned in Rule 44.

Rules 41 to 47 shall apply, as nearly as may be practicable,
where a witness wishes to disclose his/her name and/or address
or other details only to the Sub-Committee and Council officers
but not to the public or persons mentioned in Rule 44.

Whenever any evidence or information has been treated as
confidential under Rules 41 to 49, the Sub-Committee shall
consider whether to alter the weight given to that evidence in
accordance with Rule 58.

Commencement of the Hearing

51.

At the commencement of each hearing the Sub-Committee
shall follow this procedure but may omit or abridge any step or
Rule as appropriate -

(a)  The Chair will infroduce him/herself and invite the Members
and officers to introduce themselves

(b)  The Chair will invite the parties to infroduce themselves
and their representatives (if any)

(c)  The Chair will invite Members to disclose any contacts they
may have had before the hearing with the parties or
lobbyists for them.

(d) If any party fails to attend the hearing, the Sub-Committee
shall decide whether to proceed with the hearing in the
absence of that party or whether to adjourn the hearing to
another date. The Sub-Committee shall have regard to
Rules 24 and 25 and Regulations 12 and 20 of the Hearings
Regulations in making such decisions.

(e)  The Chair will explain the procedure to be followed by
reference to these Rules.

(f) The Chair will suggest the order of the topic headings for
discussion at the hearing and will then invite the comments
of the parties. In the light of such comments the Sub-
Committee will confirm the order of the topic headings or
amend them.

11



Page 122

(g) The Chair will ascertain whether there are any requests by
any of the parties to call a witness and the Sub-Committee
will then determine any such request under Rule 29.

(h)  The Chair will ascertain whether there is likely to be a
request from any of the parties to cross-examine a witness
called by another party and, if so, the reasons given for
seeking a cross-examination. The Sub-Committee will then
determine whether to allow such cross-examination in the
interests of establishing relevant facts.

(i) The Chair will ascertain whether there are any requests by
any of the parties to produce documentary evidence,
including models etc., and whether there has been full
compliance with Rules 30 to 37. In the event of any non-
compliance these Rules, the Sub-Committee shall decide
whether to admit the evidence and/or adjourn the
hearing under Rules 33 and 38.

(i) The Chair will ascertain whether there are any requests by
any of the parties to freat any evidence as confidential or
to hear any of the evidence, or hold any part of the
hearing, in private. If so, the Sub-Committee shall decide
the request under Rules 43 to 49.

(k) In any case where the Licensing Service has informed a
party that there are particular points on which the Sub-
Committee will need clarification, the Chair will then invite
the party to provide such clarification.

Procedure and Evidence at Hearing

52.

53.

54.

55.

In accordance with Hearings Regulations, the hearing shall take
the form of a discussion led by the Chair. With permission of the
Chair the other Members of the Sub-Committee may ask
questions of the parties, their representatives and witnesses and
may lead the discussion on specific topics or poinfs.

The hearing shall follow the order of the topic headings
determined under Rule 51(f) unless there is a good reason to
depart from this agreed by the Sub-Committee.

The Chair, or Member leading the discussion, shall endeavour to
ensure that each party has a reasonable opportunity to explain
their case under each topic heading. The parties, their
representatives and witnesses have a duty to make their
evidence and comments succinct and relevant to the issues
under discussion.

A party shall not be permitted to cross-examine another party or
their witness unless this has been allowed under Rule 51(h). If a

12



56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

Page 123

party has concerns relating to the evidence or comments of
another party or their witness, this should be explained to the
Sub-Committee so that the Chair can question the other
party/witness about these concerns before completing that
topic heading.

Where permission has been given to a party to call a withess,
that witness may give evidence in one or more stages when the
discussion covers the appropriate topic heading(s). Normally, a
witness will be invited by the Chair to make a statement. The
witness will then be subject to cross-examination by the other
party/parties if this has been allowed under Rule 51(h). Then the
Sub-Committee may question the witness. A party shall not re-
examine his/her own witness except with the consent of the
Chair to clarify a significant point in earlier evidence.

At the end of each topic heading the Chair shall invite the
Licensing Service or legal representative to make any comments
that they may consider necessary. With the consent of the Chair,
these officers may question parties or witnesses directly or put
their questions through the Chair.

Strict legal rules of evidence shall not apply. However, in
considering what weight to place on the evidence or comments
of any party or withess, the Sub-Committee shall have regard to
the extent to which information was: -

(a)  within a witness’ direct knowledge, and

(b) clearly and specifically related to the points at issue in the
hearing, and

(c) tested by questioning.

The Chair shall be responsible for the orderly conduct of the
hearing. The Chair may require any person to be silent and may
regulate the order in which persons speak at the hearing. The
Chair will endeavour to prevent remarks which are repetitious or
irelevant or which amount to unsubstantiated offensive
allegations against any person, present or not.

The Chair may require any person at the hearing who is
considered to be behaving in a disruptive manner to leave the
meeting and may prohibit his/her return except on compliance
with specified conditions. A person excluded from a hearing
under this Rule may put in writing any information or submission
they intended for the hearing. At a gambling hearing the Sub-
Committee must take any such information into account in
reaching its decision.

13



61.

62.

63.

64.

Page 124

The Chair on his/her own motion may indicate the decision of
the Sub-Committee on any procedural matter within the scope
of these Rules notwithstanding that the decision is stated in these
Rules to be that of the Sub-Committee. This is subject to the right
of any Member, who makes an immediate request, to have the
matter put to the vote of the Sub-Committee as a whole. Rule 66
will apply to such a vote.

In accordance with the Hearings Regulations, each party has the
right to make a closing address to the Sub-Committee in order to
summarise his/her case at the end of the hearing. Unless the
applicant consents to a different order, the applicant shall have
the right to make the final address.

Each party at a licensing hearing must be allowed an equal
maximum period of tfime to make a closing address. Normally,
the Chair will invite each party to state how much time that party
will require. However, the Sub-Committee may fix a greater or
lesser maximum time for each closing address provided that this
is reasonable in relation to the weight and complexity of the
issues at the hearing.

Each party at a gambling hearing must be allowed an equal
maximum time for the conduct of his/her case including any
address or submission and the evidence in chief of all withesses
called by that party. Normally, the Chair will invite each party to
state how much time that party will require for each part of
his/her case. However, the Sub-Committee may fix a greater or
lesser maximum time for each part of a case provided that this is
reasonable in relation to the weight and complexity of the issues
at the hearing.

Time Limit for Hearings

65.

66.

At 9.30 p.m. the Chair must ask the Sub-Committee to agree -

(a)  to continue the hearing in hand and, if necessary, to
suspend these
Rules so as to allow it to continue for a reasonably short
time beyond 10.00 p.m. when this is necessary to complete
the hearing and advisable in the interests of fairness, or

(b)  to adjourn the hearing until a date to be fixed.

Hearings shall not normally continue later than 10.00 p.m. and no
new hearing shall be commenced after 10.00 p.m.

14



Page 125

Decision Making

67.

68.

69.

70.

/1.

72.

/3.

At the end of a hearing the Sub-Committee may confer publicly
and announce its decision on the application(s) immediately.

Alternatively, the Sub-Committee may defer reaching its decision
until a later time or date, in so far as this accords with the
Hearings Regulations.

In any case, and whether or not Rule 66 applies, the Sub-
Committee may retire with the Committee clerk and legal
representative to another room to deliberate in private.

The Sub-Committee, if making a decision at that time, must
reach their decision by a majority vote. The Licensing
Committee, if making a decision at that time, must reach their
decision by a majority vote but, in the event of an equality of
votes, the Chair shall have a second, or casting, vote.

The decision(s) will then be summarised in writing and the Sub-
Committee will return to the public meeting so that the
Committee clerk can read out the decision(s) in the presence of
all the parties and their representatives.

If the Sub-Committee require any clarification of matters of fact
before reaching their decision(s), the Sub-Committee shall return
to the public meeting and put questions to the parties, their
witnesses or the Licensing representative in the presence of all
the parties and their representatives.

If the legal representative gives legal advice on any point(s)
material to the Sub-Committee’s decision(s), this advice will be
summarised and read out by the legal representative in public
before the Committee Clerk reads out the decision(s).

Waivers and Irregularities

/4.

/5.

The Chair may agree to waive any of these Rules, including any
time limit, in the case of any individual application where he/she
considers that there is good reason to do so. Excepted from this
power to waive are Rules 8 to 23 (inclusive). Any permanent
variation of these Rules must be decided by the Licensing
Committee.

Any irregularity arising from any failure to comply with any

provision of these Rules before the Sub-Committee has made a
determination shall not of itself render the proceedings void.

15



76.

/7.

Page 126

In any case of such an irregularity the Sub-Committee shall, if
Members consider that any person may have been prejudiced
as a result of the irregularity, take such steps as Members think fit
to cure the irregularity before reaching a determination of the
application(s). In any such case the Sub-Committee shall consult
the legal representative before deciding upon any steps to cure
the irregularity.

In any case where it appears after the Sub-Committee’s
determination that the decision has been vitiated by incorrect
information or any procedural or legal error, the Legal
Representative shall advise the Chair of this and of the steps
necessary to remedy the problem. With the consent of the Chair,
the Sub-Committee may reconvene to take the steps advised
and/or to amend its decision. With the consent of the Chair in an
appropriate case, the Members of the Sub-Committee may
signify their consent to any steps advised and/or any amended
decision without reconvening in person. When the legal
representative so advises, the parties affected shall be invited to
areconvened hearing or, where appropriate, to signify their
consent to any steps proposed without attending in person.

Cases Remitted by the Magistrates on Appedl

/8.

On an appeal to the Magistrates Court, the Court may remit the
case to the Council for it to determine in accordance with the
Direction of the Court. The Chair of the Licensing Committee on
legal advice may wish the Council to contest that Direction by
further legal proceedings. If not, the Chair will receive advice
from the Head of Legal Services on how to comply with the
Direction of the Court and will be requested to agree the
appropriate procedure. So far as possible, these Rules will apply
to any further hearing with such modifications as are advised to
secure compliance with the Direction of the Court.

16



	Agenda
	4 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 19 February 2007.
	Minutes Financial Planning Appd

	6 To receive the report of the Chief Executive
	9 To consider Haringey's Sustainable Community Strategy 2007 - 2016/7 "A sustainable way forward"
	Community Strategy Appendix

	10 To answer questions, if any, in accordance with Council Rules of Procedure Nos. 9 & 10
	11 To receive reports from the following bodies
	GP report
	GP report. App 1
	GP report. App 2
	GP report. App 3
	GP report. App 4
	GP report. App 5
	GP report. App 6
	GP report. App 7


